A THE PRATE PLATE		FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION SOLICITATION ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM INVITATION TO BID (ITB) CONTRACTUAL SERVICES									
Page 1 of 56		SUBMIT BID TO:	Bureau of Ge	eneral Serv	vices - Pro	nental Protection ocurement Section					
AGENCY RELEASE DAT	E:		3800 Commo		-						
May 29, 2019			Tallahassee,	Florida 32	399-3000						
SOLICITATION TITLE:						SOLICITATION NO.: 2019027					
		om Cleaning Servio	ces								
SEALED BIDS ARE DUE:			A.N.4								
SEALED BIDS WILL BE C BIDS MUST BE VALID FO			Alvi								
VENDOR NAME:		00 01. 100 Days									
VENDOR MAILING ADI	DRESS:										
VENDOR CITY-STATE-Z	IP:				AL	JTHORIZED SIGNATURE (MANUAL)					
PHONE NUMBER:											
TOLL FREE NUMBER:					*AU1	THORIZED SIGNATURE (TYPED), TITLE					
FAX NUMBER:					*This indi	ividual must have the authority to bind					
EMAIL ADDRESS:					the bidder.						
FEID NO.:											
TYPE OF BUSINESS ENTITY	(Corporatio	n, LLC, partnership, etc.):									
Bidder (and all people and they have not been disclose herein were arrived at and ITB, or to induce an entity t fraud on the agency. I certify that I am authorize including, but not limited to offers and agrees that if the causes of action it may now	entities affil ed to any th submitted v o forbear fr d to sign th o, the certifi e bid is acce v or hereaft	liated with this Bidder who ird party including, but not without prior understandin om filing a response, and t is response to this ITB for t ication requirements conta pted, the Bidder will conve er acquire under the Anti-t	have or may have t limited to, any o g, agreement, or that this bid is in the Bidder and the hined in this ITB a ey, sell, assign or trust laws of the	ve had knowl other bidder in cooperati all respects r at the Bidder s well as tho transfer to th United States	edge of the to this ITB. ion with any nade witho r is in comp se containe ne State of s and the St	d (this ITB) have been kept confidential by the e same) and that, to the best of my knowledge, Further, I certify that the prices proposed y other entity submitting a response to this ut collusion or in an effort to perpetrate a liance with all requirements of this ITB; ed above. In submitting this bid, the Bidder Florida all rights, title and interest in and to all ate of Florida for price fixing relating to the , such assignment shall be made and become					
effective at the time the pu	irchasing ag	ency tenders' final paymer	nt to the Bidder.			-					
there from.		-	-			Il terms of the ITB and any contract arising					
						ne official contact and an alternate, if available. ate regarding the ITB schedule.					
PRIMARY CONTACT:				SECONDAR							
NAME, TITLE:				NAME, TIT							
ADDRESS:				ADDRESS:							
PHONE NUMBER:				PHONE NU	JMBER:						
FAX NUMBER:				FAX NUME	BER:						
EMAIL ADDRESS:				EMAIL ADI	DRESS:						

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION	1.00 – INTRODUCTION
1.01.	Purpose and Scope4
1.02.	Timeline of Events4
1.03.	Procurement Officer4
1.04.	Mandatory Pre-Bid Site Visit5
1.05.	Questions
1.06.	Addenda6
1.07.	Price Sheet Form6
1.08.	Past Performance / Client References6
1.09.	Vendor Principal Place of Business Attestation7
1.10.	Submittal of Bid7
1.11.	Alternate Replies
1.12.	General Evaluation Information8
1.13.	Administrative Review8
1.14.	Administrative Cure Process8
1.15.	Basis of Award8
1.16.	Posting of Agency Decision8
1.17.	Department's Reserved Rights9
1.18.	MyFloridaMarketPlace Vendor Registration9
1.19.	Type of Contract Contemplated9
1.20.	Anticipated Contract Term and Renewal9
1.21.	Florida Department of State Registration Requirements10
1.22.	Convicted Vendor List
1.23.	Diversity10
1.24.	Bidder Responsibility10
1.24. 1.25.	Bidder Responsibility 10 Protest Rights 10
1.25.	
1.25.	Protest Rights
1.25. Section	Protest Rights

2.04	Firm Response11
2.05	Misrepresentations11
2.06	Public Requests for Bids
2.07	Qualifications
2.08	Prime Contractor and Subcontractor12
SECTION	3.00 - SCOPE OF SERVICES
3.01.	Introduction13
3.02.	Description of Restrooms
3.03.	Supplies13
3.04.	Quality Requirements
3.05.	Deliverables14
3.06.	Staff Changes15
3.07.	Other Requirements
SECTION	4.00 – GENERAL CONTRACT CONDITIONS (PUR 1000)20
SECTION	5.00 – PRICE SHEET FORM
SECTION	6.00 – VENDOR FINANCIAL ATTESTATION
SECTION	7.00 – VENDOR RESPONSIBILITY DISCLOSURE
SECTION	8.00 – VENDOR CONFLICTS OF INTEREST ATTESTATION
SECTION	9.00 – VENDOR PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS ATTESTATION
SECTION	10.00 – VENDOR DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE ATTESTATION
SECTION	11.00 – VENDOR SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES LISTS ATTESTATION27
SECTION	12.00 – CLIENT REFERENCE FORM
SECTION	13.00 – BIDDER/SUBCONTRACTOR SUMMARY FORM32
SECTION	14.00 – PAST PERFORMANCE EVALUATION FORM
SECTION	15.00 – PROPOSED CONTRACT
SECTION	16.00 – SOLICITATION PROPOSAL CHECKLIST

– Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank –

SECTION 1.00 – INTRODUCTION

1.01. Purpose and Scope. The Department of Environmental Protection (hereinafter referred to as the "Department" or "DEP") is requesting bids from qualified Contractors (hereinafter referred to as the "Bidder" or "Respondent" or "Contractor" or "Vendor") to provide restroom cleaning services for the Delnor-Wiggins Pass State Park (Park) located at 11135 Gulfshore Drive, Naples, Florida, 34108. The Park has six (6) restrooms open to the public daily from 8:00 a.m. until sunset.

1.02. Timeline of Events. The following schedule will be strictly adhered to in all actions relative to this Solicitation. The Department reserves the right to make adjustments to this schedule and will notify participants in the Solicitation by posting an addendum on the Vendor Bid System (VBS). It is the responsibility of the Bidder to check VBS on a regular basis for such updates.

EVENTS	DATES	TIME	LOCATION/METHOD
ITB Advertised	May 29	, 2019	Vendor Bid System
Notify Procurement Officer of Intent to Attend the Pre- Bid Site Visit	June 17, 2019	4:00 PM	Email to Procurement Officer
Mandatory Pre-Bid Site Visit	June 19, 2019	10:00 AM	Delnor-Wiggins Pass State Park 11135 Gulfshore Drive Naples, FL 34108
Vendor Questions Due	June 26, 2019	3:00 PM	Email to Procurement Officer
Questions & Answers Addendum, on or about	July 2,	2019	Vendor Bid System
Sealed Bids Due	July 11, 2019	3:00 PM	<u>Mail to Department</u> : ITB 2019027 Bureau of General Services, Procurement Section 3800 Commonwealth Blvd, MS93 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000
Public Opening	July 12, 2019	10:00 AM	Conference Room 153 3800 Commonwealth Blvd Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000
References Contacted	July 15 through	July 19, 2019	By Phone and/or Email by Department
Intent to Award, on or about	July 30,	2019	Vendor Bid System

*All times referenced in this solicitation are current local time in Tallahassee, Florida

1.03. Procurement Officer. Pursuant to section 287.057(23), F.S., and the PUR 1001, Section 2.00, the Procurement Officer is the sole point of contact from the date of release of this ITB until the Contract award is made. Violation of this provision may be grounds for rejecting a Bid.

Lori L. Anderson, FCCN, FCCM Bureau of General Services – Procurement Section Florida Department of Environmental Protection Commonwealth Boulevard, MS#93 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000 Email: lori.l.anderson@dep.state.fl.us Refer ALL inquiries in writing to the Procurement Officer by email. Responses to timely questions posed to the Procurement Officer will be posted on the VBS. The Department will not talk to any Bidders or their agents regarding a pending solicitation. Please note that no information will be given via telephone.

The Procurement Officer shall not be bound by any verbal information or by any written information that is not contained within the Solicitation documents or formally noticed and issued by the DEP Procurement Section.

ALL EMAILS TO THE PROCUREMENT OFFICER SHALL CONTAIN THE SOLICITATION NUMBER 2019027 IN THE SUBJECT LINE OF THE EMAIL

1.04. Mandatory Pre-Bid Site Visit. A MANDATORY Pre-Bid Site Visit will be held at Delnor-Wiggins Pass State Park, 11135 Gulfshore Drive, Naples, Florida, as specified in the Timeline of Events. All prospective Bidders intending to submit a Bid must attend the Mandatory Pre- Bid Site Visit as scheduled in order to submit a Bid. Failure to attend the Mandatory Pre-Bid Site Visit shall preclude a prospective Bidder from submitting a Bid and will render the Bid non-responsive and will result in the rejection of the Bid.

The Bidder shall notify the Procurement Officer of their plans to attend the facility site visit via email. The email must be received at least two (2) days prior to the date of the site visit as provided in the Timeline of Events.

Prospective Bidders should allow enough time to arrive, park, walk and gain entry into the building to ensure that they arrive prior to the applicable Mandatory Pre-Bid Site Visit time.

Accessibility for Disabled Persons: Any person requiring special accommodations at any Pre-Bid Conference, public opening, or event because of a disability or physical impairment should call the listed contact person no later than five (5) days prior to the event. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Department using the Florida Relay Service at 1(800) 955-8771 (TDD).

Rockal Archie, Employee Relations Manager Department of Environmental Protection, Bureau of Human Resource Management <u>HR_ER@FloridaDEP.gov</u> (850) 245-2485 (voice) or 711 (Florida Relay Service)

1.05. Questions.

NOTE: This section supersedes Section 2.00, General Instructions to Respondents (PUR 1001), Paragraph#5, Questions.

Information will not be provided by telephone. Any questions from prospective Bidders concerning this Solicitation shall be submitted in writing to the Procurement Officer no later than the time and date specified in the Timeline of Events. No interpretation shall be considered binding unless provided in writing by the Department in response to a request in full compliance with this provision. All questions and answers will be posted on the VBS. Questions will not constitute a formal protest of the specifications or of the Solicitation.

Responses to all written inquiries, and clarifications or addenda if made to the Solicitation, will be made through the VBS. It is the prospective Bidder's responsibility to periodically check the VBS. The Department bears no responsibility for any delays, or resulting impacts, associated with a prospective Bidder's failure to obtain the information made available through the VBS.

Each submission shall have the ITB number 2019027 in the subject line of the email. Questions must be submitted in the following format to be considered:

- Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank -

Question #	ITB Section	ITB Page #	Question

Once the Department posts the answers to the questions, Bidders may begin submitting bids; however, Bidders are encouraged to submit their Bids no earlier than five (5) days prior to the submission deadline. Bids must be submitted by the deadline listed in the Timeline of Events.

1.06. Addenda. If the Department finds it necessary to supplement, modify, or interpret any portion of the Bid documents, a written "Addendum" will be posted on the VBS. It is the responsibility of the Bidder to be aware of any Addenda that might have a bearing on their Bid.

1.07. Price Sheet Form. Price Sheet Form must be completed and submitted, or the Bid will be rejected. The Department will not accept any other type of "Price Sheet Form" as a valid response to this Bid. By affixing authorizing signature, the Bidder hereby affirms and agrees to all terms, conditions, provisions, and specifications within the Bid.

1.08. Past Performance / Client References. In the space provided on the Client Reference Form, the Bidder must list all names under which it has operated during the last five (5) years. The Department will review its records to identify all contracts that the respondent has undertaken with the Department, where the Bidder was the prime contractor, during the last five (5) years (contracts in effect during or after May 2014).

In the spaces provided on Client Reference Form, the Bidder must provide the required information for three (3) separate and verifiable clients of the Bidder (not intended subcontractors) for projects similar to the project described in this Solicitation. The clients listed must be for work of similar scope and size to that specified in this Solicitation. Confidential clients shall not be included. Do not list projects completed for the Department as a reference on this form.

The same client may not be listed for more than one (1) reference (for example, if the Bidder has completed a project for the Florida Department of Transportation – District One and one project for the Florida Department of Transportation – District Two, only one of the projects may be listed because the client, the Florida Department of Transportation, is the same).

Clients that are listed as subcontractors in a Bid will not be accepted as Past Performance references under this Solicitation. Firms that are currently parent or subsidiary companies to the Bidder will not be accepted as Past Performance references under this Solicitation.

In the event that the Bidder has had a name change since the time work was performed for a listed reference, the name under which the Bidder operated at the time that the work was performed must be given, at the end of the project description for that reference, on the Client Reference Form.

In the event that the Bidder submits a Bid as a joint venture, at least one (1) past performance client must be listed for each member of the joint venture. However, the total number of clients to be listed remains three (3).

References should be available to be contacted during normal business hours (Monday-Friday, 8:00 a.m.– 5:00 p.m.), per the Timeline of Events. The Department will contact ALL three (3) of the Bidder's references in order to complete an evaluation questionnaire as provided on the Client Reference Form.

A Department representative will contact the references via telephone and/or email to verify satisfactory Past Performance. The Department will attempt to contact each reference up to two (2) times during the duration of time listed on the Timeline of Events. In the event that the contact person cannot be reached following the specified number of attempts the reference will not be considered. The Department will not attempt to correct incorrectly supplied information. Each Bidder is required to have at least two (2) satisfactory references to be deemed responsible and considered for award.

Bidder must also complete and sign the **Client Reference Form** allowing the Department to evaluate and assess Vendor's eligibility for Contract Award pursuant to the indicated solicitation, and that any such information provided may be subject to disclosure under Chapter 119, F.S., the Florida Constitution, or other authority.

Failure to provide the required information for three (3) separate and verifiable clients in the spaces provided on the Client Reference Form, or failure to provide the required information for each reference shall result in the Bidder being deemed not responsible and their Bid will not be considered for award.

1.09. Vendor Principal Place of Business Attestation. The Bidder shall complete and submit the Vendor Principal Place of Business Attestation Form, indicating whether its principal place of business is within the State. For the purpose of this ITB, "principal place of business" means the state in which the Bidder's high-level officers direct, control, and coordinate the Bidder's activities.

Consistent with section 287.084 (2), F.S., if a Bidder indicates on its form that its principal place of business is outside of this State, it shall have an attorney provide the opinion on the Vendor Principal Place of Business Attestation Form.

1.10. Submittal of Bid.

NOTE: This section supersedes Section 2.00, General Instructions to Respondents (PUR 1001) Paragraph 3, Electronic Submission of Responses.

The Bidder must submit one (1) hard copy (Original) and one (1) duplicate electronic copy of the entire Bid to the Department. The hard copy of the Bid shall bear original signatures and be marked as the "Original." The electronic copy of the Bid may be submitted on CD, DVD, or USB-compatible memory stick and must be in .pdf format. The Department will reject Bids submitted in alternate file formats or which contain information different from that in the hard copy of the Bid.

Bidders shall deliver Bids to the Department's office designated in the Solicitation Acknowledgement Form before the date and time specified. Any Bid that is received after the exact time specified in the Timeline of Events is late. Bidder should be aware that the U.S. Postal Service does not guarantee on time delivery for any service other than Express Mail. Late Bids, as well as Bids submitted electronically or by facsimile, are Non-Responsive and will not be considered and are not eligible for Award. All Bid materials must be packaged so that each box shipped to the Department does not exceed 25 pounds.

In addition to whatever markings are required for shipment, Bid packages must be marked to show the Bidder's name and address, the solicitation number, and the date and time Bids are due. If multiple packages are shipped, package sequences (i.e. 1 of 3, 2 of 4, etc.) must also be indicated on the outside of the package.

The Bid package shall contain the following:

- Solicitation Acknowledgement Form;
- Price Sheet Form(s);
- Product Description Form;
- Vendor Financial Attestation;
- Vendor Responsibility Disclosure;
- Vendor Conflicts of Interest Attestation;
- Vendor Principal Place of Business Attestation;
- Vendor Drug-Free Workplace Attestation;
- Vendor Scrutinized Companies Lists Attestation;
- Client Reference Forms; and
- Bidder/Subcontractor Summary Form

If a Bidder asserts that any portion of the Bid is exempt from disclosure under the Florida Public Records law, Bidder must submit a redacted version of the Bid along with the un-redacted version. The redacted copy shall be clearly titled "Redacted Copy."

CAUTION: Bids received by the Department after the exact time specified for receipt will not be considered.

1.11. Alternate Replies. A Bidder may not submit more than one (1) bid. The Department seeks each Bidder's single-best bid.

1.12. General Evaluation Information. The Department reserves the right to accept or reject any or all Bids received; waive any minor irregularity, technicality, or omission if the Department determines that doing so will serve in the State's best interest; and reserves the right to make an award without further discussion of the bids submitted. No allowances will be made to the bidder because of a lack of knowledge of conditions or requirements and any such lack of knowledge will not relieve any liabilities and obligations.

A non-responsive submittal shall include, but not be limited to, those that: a) are irregular or are not in conformance with the requirements and instructions contained herein; b) fail to utilize or complete prescribed forms; or c) have improper or undated signatures. A NON-RESPONSIVE SUBMITTAL WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED.

The Department objects to and shall not consider any additional terms or conditions submitted by a Bidder, including any appearing in documents attached as part of a Bid. In submitting its Bid, a Bidder agrees that any additional terms or conditions, whether submitted intentionally or inadvertently, shall have not force or effect.

1.13. Administrative Review. All Bids will be reviewed by the Procurement Officer to ensure that complete Bids have been submitted and to ensure that the Bids meet the minimum requirements as outlined in this ITB. In order to foster maximum competition, the Department will seek to minimize Bidders disqualifications resulting from non-responsiveness during the administrative review process. Therefore, the Department may, in its sole discretion, notify Bidders whose qualifying information or documentation does not meet the requirements of the ITB and will allow the correction of errors and omissions prior to making a final determination of responsiveness. Timely cures will be accepted by the Department.

1.14. Administrative Cure Process. In the interest of maximizing competition, the Bid qualification and cure process seeks to minimize, if not eliminate, Bidders disqualifications resulting from nonmaterial, curable deficiencies in the Bid. During the Administrative Review portion of the evaluation, if the Department determines that a nonmaterial, curable deficiency in the bid will result in the disqualification of a Bidder, the Department may notify the Bidder of the deficiency and a timeframe within which to provide the information. This process is at the sole discretion of the Department; therefore, the Bidder is advised to ensure that its Bid is compliant with the ITB at the time of submittal.

1.15. Basis of Award. The Department intends to award to the lowest responsible, responsive Bidder meeting all specifications and conditions of this solicitation.

1.16. Posting of Agency Decision.

NOTE: This section supersedes Section 2.00, General Instructions to Respondents (PUR-1001), Paragraph #3, Electronic Posting of Notice of Intended Award.

The Department will post a Notice of Intent to Award, stating its intent to enter into a Contract with the Bidder identified therein, on the Vendor Bid System (VBS) website. If the Department decides to reject all Bids, it will post its notice on the same VBS website. The Notice of Intent to Award will be posted for review by interested parties on the VBS on or after the date listed on the Timeline of Events.

1.17. Department's Reserved Rights.

The Department reserves the right to:

- **A.** Reject all bids at any time, including after an award is made when doing so would be in the best interest of the State of Florida.
- **B.** Determine a bid non-responsive.
- **C.** Waive any minor irregularity, technicality, or omission if the Department determines that doing so will be in the best interest of the State of Florida.
- **D.** Make no award, as determined to be in the best interest of the State of Florida.
- **E.** Award to the next lowest responsible, responsive Bidder if the lowest Bidder is unable to meet the terms and conditions of the Solicitation.
- **F.** Withdraw the ITB at any time, including after an award is made, when doing so would be in the best interest of the State of Florida.
- **G.** Withdraw or amend its Notice of Award at any time prior to execution of a contract, including, but not limited to situations in which the selected vendor fails to execute the contract.
- **H.** Withdraw or amend its Notice of Award if the Contractor defaults in performance.
- I. Re-procure services in accordance with Rule 60A-1.006(3), F.A.C.
- J. To make an award without further discussion of the bids submitted.

By exercising the above listed rights, the Department assumes no liability to any vendor.

1.18. MyFloridaMarketPlace Vendor Registration. Prior to execution of Contract(s) by the Department, Awarded Vendor(s) must be registered with the Florida Department of Management Services' (DMS) MyFloridaMarketPlace (MFMP) Vendor Registration System. Information about the registration process is available on, and registration may be completed at, the MFMP website. Prospective vendors who do not have Internet access may request assistance from MFMP Customer Service.

The following United Nations Standard Products and Services Code (UNSPSC) are provided to assist you in your registration efforts:

- 76101502 Restroom cleaning services;
- 76110000 Cleaning and janitorial services;
- 76111501 Building cleaning services; and
- 76111600 Building component cleaning services.

1.19. Type of Contract Contemplated. A fixed fee schedule contract is proposed based on the prices submitted by the selected Bidder on the Price Sheet Form; however, the Department reserves the right to award another type contract if such will be most advantageous to the Department and the State. The selected Contractor shall be paid for the services rendered under the contract resulting from this Solicitation upon satisfactory completion of these services.

A copy of the proposed Contract containing all requirements is included in this Solicitation. The requirements contained in the proposed Contract should be closely reviewed by the Bidder since modifications proposed by the Bidder will not be considered.

1.20. Anticipated Contract Term and Renewal. The term of the Contract will begin upon execution by both parties and remain in effect for a period of five (5) years, unless cancelled earlier in accordance with the terms of the Contract. The Department reserves the right to renew any Contract resulting from this Solicitation. Renewal(s) shall be in writing and subject to the same terms and conditions as the original

Contract and any amendments thereto, for a period no greater than five (5) years. All renewals are contingent upon satisfactory performance by Contractor. Renewals may be for the entire period or in increments.

1.21. Florida Department of State Registration Requirements. The Bidder is responsible for registering with the Florida Department of State prior to execution of the Contract unless exempt (see applicable sections of Title XXXVI, Business Organizations, Chapters 605 through 623, F.S.).

1.22. Convicted Vendor List. A company placed on the Convicted Vendor List may not submit a Bid or be awarded a contract to provide any goods or services pursuant to Rule 60A-1.006 F.A.C. The "Convicted Vendor List" is published at MyFlorida.com.

1.23. Diversity. The Department is dedicated to fostering the continued development and economic growth of small, minority-owned, veteran-owned, and women-owned businesses. Participation of a diverse group of Bidders doing business with the State is central to the Department's effort.

To this end, small, minority-owned, veteran-owned, and women-owned business enterprises are encouraged to participate in the State's procurement process as both prime Bidders and subcontractors under prime contracts. Bidders are encouraged to partner with certified small, minority-owned, veteran-owned, and women-owned businesses for contract performance. Enterprises that desire to be certified as a small, minority-owned, veteran-owned, or women-owned business and prime contractors who wish to partner with these entities can request certification information from the State's Office of Supplier Diversity (OSD) within the Florida Department of Management Services.

1.24. Bidder Responsibility. In determining Bidder responsibility, the Department may consider any information or evidence which comes to its attention and which reflects upon a Bidder's capability to fully perform the Bid requirements and/or the Bidder's demonstration of the level of integrity and reliability which the Department determines to be required to assure performance of the Bid.

1.25. Protest Rights. Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in section 120.57(3), Florida Statutes, or failure to post a bond or other security required by law within the time allowed for filing a bond shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under Chapter 120, Florida Statutes.

Documents received after Business hours (Monday-Friday, 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m., Eastern Time) will be filed the following business day.

All filings must be made with the Agency Clerk ONLY and are only considered "filed" when stamped, physically or digitally, by the Agency Clerk. It is the responsibility of the filing party to meet all filing deadlines.

The Agency Clerk's address is: Agency Clerk, Office of General Counsel Department of Environmental Protection 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Douglas Building, MS#35 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000 Email: <u>Agency clerk@floridadep.gov</u>

Do not send Bids to the Agency Clerk's Office. Send all Bids to the Procurement Officer identified in the solicitation.

– Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank –

SECTION 2.00 – INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

This section contains the General Instructions and Special Instructions to Bidders. The "General Instructions to Respondents" Form PUR 1001 is incorporated by reference and can be accessed at MyFlorida.com or at:

https://www.dms.myflorida.com/content/download/2934/11780/PUR_1001_General_Instructions_to_ Respondents.pdf. The remaining instructions are "Special Instructions."

2.01 Assertion of Confidentiality Regarding Submitted Materials.

- A. If Bidder asserts that any portion of their Bid is proprietary, trade secret, intellectual property, or otherwise confidential ("Confidential Information") and which Bidder claims as exempt from disclosure under Chapter 119 Florida Statutes, the Florida Constitution or other authority ("Florida Public Records Law"), then Bidder must submit a redacted version of the Bid along with the unredacted version. The redacted copy shall be clearly titled "Redacted Copy."
- B. Any relevant and responsive information submitted which is asserted by Bidder to be Confidential Information that Bidder claims as exempt from disclosure from applicable Florida Public Records Law must be clearly marked as such in the un-redacted version of your Bid, and either removed from or obliterated in the Redacted Copy.
- C. The Redacted Copy should redact all, but only, those portions of material that Bidder asserts are Confidential Information. Bidder must identify the statutory citation supporting its claim of confidentiality for each and every redaction. Bidder shall not mark the entire Bid as confidential, trade secret or otherwise not subject to Florida Public Records Law. Any Bid with more than fifty percent (50%) of the documents, data or records so marked will be deemed non-responsive and will not be considered.
- D. Failure to identify asserted Confidential Information in Bids, and/or to redact such information in the Redacted Copy, shall constitute a waiver of any claim of confidentiality or exemption to such information, document or Bid.

2.02 Conflict of Interest. The Bidder covenants that it presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the services required to be performed under the contract.

2.03 Disclosure. Information will be disclosed to Bids in accordance with State statutes and rules applicable to this ITB after evaluations are complete.

2.04 Firm Response.

NOTE: This section supersedes Section 2.00, General Instruction to Bidders (PUR1001), Paragraph 14, Firm Response.

The Department may make an award within one hundred eighty (180) days after the date of the Bid opening, during which period the Bid submitted shall remain firm and shall not be withdrawn. If an award is not made within one hundred eighty (180) days after the Bid opening date, the Bid shall remain firm until either the Department posts an Agency Decision, or the Department receives a written notice from the Bidder that the Bid is withdrawn, whichever occurs first. Any Bid that expresses a shorter duration shall be rejected.

2.05 Misrepresentations. All information submitted, and representations made by the Bidder are material and important and will be relied upon by the Department in awarding the contract. Any misstatement or

omission (a "Misrepresentation") shall be treated as a fraudulent concealment of the true facts relating to submission of the ITB. A misrepresentation shall be a basis for Department to disqualify the Bidder from participating in this ITB, and any re-bid pertaining to this subject matter (regardless of whether the re-bid resulted from Bidder's misrepresentation) and shall be punishable under law, including, but not limited to, Chapter 817, F.S.

2.06 Public Requests for Bids.

- A. If a public records request for the Bids is made, the Department will provide the requestor access to the Redacted Copy, bearing Bidder's assertion of exemption from disclosure. If Bidder failed to submit a Redacted Copy, the Department is authorized to produce the entire un-redacted document submitted to the Department in response to a public records request encompassing the Bid.
- B. If a public records request is made for the un-redacted Bids challenging the assertion of Bidder's exemption, the Department will notify Bidder. Bidder shall be solely responsible for taking whatever action it deems appropriate to legally defend its claim of exemption from disclosure under the Public Records Law.
- C. Bidder shall obtain either an agreement with the requestor withdrawing its request or commence an action in a court of competent jurisdiction requesting an injunction prohibiting its disclosure within seventy-two (72) hours (excluding weekends and state and federal holidays) of Bidder's receipt of notice of the public records request.
- D. By submitting its Bid, Bidder agrees that no right or remedy for damages against the Department will arise from disclosure by the Department of the alleged Confidential Information following Bidder's failure to promptly protect its claim of exemption.
- E. By submitting a Bid, the Bidder agrees to protect, defend, and indemnify the Department for any and all claims arising from or relating to the Bidder's assertion that the redacted portions of its Bid are Confidential Information not subject to disclosure.

2.07 Qualifications. The Bidder must prove to the satisfaction of the Department that they have available under their direct supervision the necessary organization, experience, equipment and staff to properly fulfill all the conditions, requirements, and specifications required under this ITB. The Bidder must provide contact information for references as outlined in the Past Performance/Client References section. Bidders are only qualified for the janitorial services if they have a minimum of five (5) years of experience cleaning a laboratory/hospital complex with a minimum floor area of 40,000 square feet.

2.08 Prime Contractor and Subcontractor. In accordance with the terms of the Acknowledgment Form, a Bidder may not respond to this ITB as both prime Contractor and as a subcontractor. The Bidder **shall be disqualified** if and to the extent it responds to this ITB as a proposed prime Contractor and has agreed to serve as a subcontractor to any other Bidder to this ITB. A Bidder may not disclose to any other Bidder or subcontractor what prices or terms Bidder has included in its Bid as a prime Contractor.

All Bids to this ITB to provide services as prime Contractors which are received from affiliated entities (those with any common ownership, management or control), shall be rejected if discovered prior to selection and any award or contract thereon shall be terminated if discovered subsequent thereto.

- Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank -

SECTION 3.00 - SCOPE OF SERVICES

This Scope of Services will be attached to any Contract that may be executed as a result of this Solicitation as the Scope of Work. By submitting a Bid, each Bidder specifically acknowledges and agrees that in addition to all requirements noted elsewhere in this Solicitation, all requirements referencing "Contractor" contained within the Scope of Services below will be applicable to the Bidder should he/she be deemed the successful Bidder.

All services to be performed shall meet or exceed the minimum requirements outlined in this Solicitation. Under no circumstances shall services meeting less than the minimum services requirements be permitted without the prior written approval of the Department; otherwise, it shall be considered that services proposed will be performed in strict compliance with requirement and rules, regulations and governance contained in this Bid and successful Bidder shall be held responsible therefore.

3.01. Introduction. This Scope of Services describes restroom cleaning services required for Delnor-Wiggins Pass State Park located at 11135 Gulfshore Drive, Naples, Florida, 34108. There are six (6) bathrooms to be cleaned: three (3) have electricity and three (3) do not have electricity. The facilities will be cleaned on a daily basis, seven (7) days a week, starting no later than 7:00 a.m. and completed no later than 12:00 p.m.

3.02. Description of Restrooms. The restrooms each have a men's side and a women's side.

- A. Five (5) of the restrooms are described as follows:
 - 1. Men's side:
 - Two (2) urinals, three (3) sinks and three (3) commodes.
 - 2. Women's side:
 - Three (3) sinks and four (4) commodes.
- B. One (1) of the restrooms is described as follows and is attached to the roofed pavilion with a wooden deck:
 - 1. Men's side:
 - Two (2) urinals, two (2) sinks and one (1) commode.
 - 2. Women's side:
 - Three (3) sinks and two (2) commodes.
- **3.03. Supplies.** The Department will be responsible for providing the following:
 - Disinfectant cleaner;
 - Cleanser;
 - Bowl cleaner;
 - Hand soap;
 - Paper towels;
 - Toilet paper;
 - Glass cleaner; and
 - Trash Can liners.

All other supplies and/or equipment shall be provided by the Contractor.

3.04. Quality Requirements.

- A. <u>Sweeping, wet mopping or scrubbing.</u> The floors and stairways shall be clean and free of dirt, water streaks, mop marks, string, gum, grease, tar, etc., and present an overall appearance of cleanliness. All surfaces shall be dry and the corners clean.
- B. <u>Porcelainware cleaning</u>. Porcelain fixtures (washbasins, urinals, toilets, etc.) shall be clean and bright; there shall be no dust, spots, stains, rust, green mold, encrustation, or excess moisture.
- C. <u>Servicing</u>. All supply dispensers shall be filled. Trash cans emptied, and trash can liners replaced as needed. Sanitary napkin receptacles emptied, cleaned, disinfected and new bags inserted.
- D. <u>Spot cleaning.</u> Smudges, marks, or spots shall be removed without causing discoloration. Furniture should be free of spotty dirt areas, smudges, or other marks which give a poor, unclean appearance.
- E. <u>Thorough sweeping</u>. Floors shall be clean and free of trash, dirt and other debris. No dirt shall be left in corners and behind doors.
- F. <u>Metal polishing.</u> Metal surfaces shall be free of smears, stains and fingerprints. They shall be clean and bright and polished to a uniform luster.
- G. <u>Thorough dusting.</u> There shall be no dust streaks. Corners, crevices, molding and ledges shall be free of dust. There shall be no oils, spots or smudges on dusted surfaces caused by dusting tools.
- H. <u>Damp mopping.</u> Floors shall be free of streaks, mop strand marks and skipped areas. Walls, baseboards and other surfaces shall be free of splashing and markings from the equipment. The finished area should have a uniform luster.
- I. <u>Glass cleaning.</u> All glass shall be clean and free of dirt, dust, streaks, watermarks and spots and shall not be cloudy.
- J. <u>Cleaning surface tops.</u> Areas should be free of dust, dirt, grime, etc.
- K. <u>Cleaning thresholds</u>. Thresholds shall be clean and free of oil, grease, dirt and grime.
- L. <u>Solid waste collection</u>. All solid waste generated in the restrooms shall be collected and removed to the dumpster.

3.05. Deliverables. The following is a list of deliverables the Contractor shall provide: (for more details refer to Exhibit I, Florida Park Service Routine Restroom Cleaning Procedures)

- A. Daily Duties:
 - 1. Sweep and wet mop or scrub floor and decking utilizing a cleaner/disinfectant. Clean all spills with mop and cleaner/disinfectant solution.
 - 2. Clean all fixtures inside and outside basins, shelves, hardware, urinals, sinks, mirrors, trash cans, dispensers and wall surfaces utilizing a cleaner/disinfectant sponge or cloth. Raise commode seats. Wipe dry with cloth.
 - 3. Spot clean surfaces as needed.
 - 4. Wipe walls to eliminate cobwebs, bug debris, dust and dirt. Dust windowsills, louvers and other surfaces.
 - 5. Sweep shower pads and surrounding boardwalk.

- 6. Empty trash cans and replace trash can liners as needed, service paper towels, hand cleaner, and toilet paper. Empty, clean and disinfect sanitary napkin receptacles; replace soiled bags with new ones. Collect soiled bags in separate containers for disposal.
- 7. Clean baby changing stations inside and out with a sponge or cloth utilizing a cleaner/disinfectant. Wipe dry with cloth.
- B. Monthly duties:
 - 1. Spray restroom down with bleach solution (approved by Park management) to prevent mildew.

3.06. Staff Changes.

- A. Supervisor changes shall require written notice to the Department's Contract Manager of the anticipated vacancy. Vacancies shall be filled promptly within seven (7) days unless otherwise approved by the Department's Contract Manager.
- B. Cleaning personnel vacancies shall be filled within 24 hours. As cleaning personnel leave, the supervisor will be required to notify the Department's Contract Manger in writing at the time of their departure.

3.07. Other Requirements.

A. Complete restroom cleaning service log daily, see Exhibit II.

- Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank -

EXHIBIT I

FLORIDA PARK SERVICE ROUTINE RESTROOM CLEANING PROCEDURES

b.	Res	strooms							
	phy con	e care of restrooms and their related fixtures is a high priority. Clean, sanitary facilities lead to the vsical and mental comfort of all people using them. Maintaining clean, sanitary facilities is a atinuous task and all areas including fixtures will be carefully cleaned at least once each day and re often if use patterns dictate.							
	1.	Restroom Cleaning Tools and Equipment							
	The items required for restroom cleaning are relatively few and simple. The basic items list should, in most cases, be all that are required to accomplish a satisfactory job. When possi needed items should be stored in each restroom storage room for immediate availability.								
	 Wet mop and pail Toilet brush Cleaning cloths and sponge Hose 								
	2. Routine Restroom Cleaning Procedure								
	A routine daily procedure in the cleaning operation will increase efficiency and tend to the possibility of oversight of areas to be cleaned. The following procedure will norma accomplish the entire cleaning job with a minimum of time and effort:								
		 Pick up waste paper and empty waste containers. Dust window sills, walls, rafters, louvers and other surfaces, remove cobwebs/insect nests from interior and exterior walls. Sweep and mop floor with a disinfectant cleaner and remove all stuck substances with a putty knife. Wash walls, doors and compartments with a cloth or sponge, saturated with a cleaner/disinfectant solution, making a special effort to remove all graffiti. The use of a mild abrasive powdered cleanser may be necessary to remove difficult stains. All surfaces should be rinsed to remove cleaning agent sediments. Spot cleaning of these surfaces should be done on a daily basis and the entire room washed in this manner at least bimonthly. Wash windows and mirrors using clear water and cloth. Dry with clean cloth. The cleaning of toilet bowls and urinals is the most important job in the restroom. Special attention is to be given these fixtures. Using a toilet brush, mop, cloth or sponge, and an approved bowl cleaner/disinfectant, thoroughly clean the interior making sure to clean 							
	the surfaces under the lip of the bowl or urinal and at the waterline. The occasional use of a mild abrasive powdered cleanser on a mop, cloth or sponge may be								

 necessary to remove stubborn stains. Rinse and flush the unit. The exterior surfaces and seats should then be washed with a cleaner/disinfectant solution, rinsed and dried with a clean cloth. Urinals and toilets will have encrustation form in fixture traps, under toilet flush rings, and behind urinal lips on the top, sides and bottom. Weekly inspection of these areas with a small hand-held mirror will ensure they are being cleaned thoroughly. Encrustations are a major source of offensive odor in restrooms. To avoid this problem, the cleaning frequency with a bowl cleaner will be established so these fixtures are odor free at all times. Carefully wash exposed surfaces of the lavatories or wash basins using a cleaner/disinfectant solution and a cloth or sponge. Rinse and dry with a clean cloth. The occasional use of a powdered cleanser may be necessary to remove stains. All faucets, flush valves and other polished metal surfaces should be washed and dried. Wiping these surfaces with a treated cloth once a week will inhibit the formation of corrosion. All floor drains should be flushed with a bucket of water or hose at weekly intervals. Floor drain covers should be removed regularly and cleaned. All paper dispensing units should be checked and filled daily or more often as required. Check and fill soap dispensers daily or as required by use. The entire floor area should be mopped with a cleaner/disinfectant solution daily. An occasional scrubbing with a deck brush may be required to remove stubborn dirt. Light fixtures should be cleaned on a regular basis and burned out bulbs replaced at once. Window screens should be cleaned regularly. 	-	
 and behind urinal lips on the top, sides and bottom. Weekly inspection of these areas with a small hand-held mirror will ensure they are being cleaned thoroughly. Encrustations are a major source of offensive odor in restrooms. To avoid this problem, the cleaning frequency with a bowl cleaner will be established so these fixtures are odor free at all times. Carefully wash exposed surfaces of the lavatories or wash basins using a cleaner/disinfectant solution and a cloth or sponge. Rinse and dry with a clean cloth. The occasional use of a powdered cleanser may be necessary to remove stains. All faucets, flush valves and other polished metal surfaces should be washed and dried. Wiping these surfaces with a treated cloth once a week will inhibit the formation of corrosion. All floor drains should be flushed with a bucket of water or hose at weekly intervals. Floor drain covers should be removed regularly and cleaned. All paper dispensing units should be checked and filled daily or more often as required. Check and fill soap dispensers daily or as required by use. The entire floor area should be mopped with a cleaner/disinfectant solution daily. An occasional scrubbing with a deck brush may be required to remove stubborn dirt. Light fixtures should be cleaned on a regular basis and burned out bulbs replaced at once. 		seats should then be washed with a cleaner/disinfectant solution, rinsed and dried with a
 Carefully wash exposed surfaces of the lavatories or wash basins using a cleaner/disinfectant solution and a cloth or sponge. Rinse and dry with a clean cloth. The occasional use of a powdered cleanser may be necessary to remove stains. All faucets, flush valves and other polished metal surfaces should be washed and dried. Wiping these surfaces with a treated cloth once a week will inhibit the formation of corrosion. All floor drains should be flushed with a bucket of water or hose at weekly intervals. Floor drain covers should be removed regularly and cleaned. All paper dispensing units should be checked and filled daily or more often as required. Check and fill soap dispensers daily or as required by use. The entire floor area should be mopped with a cleaner/disinfectant solution daily. An occasional scrubbing with a deck brush may be required to remove stubborn dirt. Light fixtures should be cleaned on a regular basis and burned out bulbs replaced at once. 		and behind urinal lips on the top, sides and bottom. Weekly inspection of these areas with a small hand-held mirror will ensure they are being cleaned thoroughly. Encrustations are a major source of offensive odor in restrooms. To avoid this problem, the cleaning frequency with a bowl cleaner will be established so these fixtures are odor
 cleaner/disinfectant solution and a cloth or sponge. Rinse and dry with a clean cloth. The occasional use of a powdered cleanser may be necessary to remove stains. All faucets, flush valves and other polished metal surfaces should be washed and dried. Wiping these surfaces with a treated cloth once a week will inhibit the formation of corrosion. All floor drains should be flushed with a bucket of water or hose at weekly intervals. Floor drain covers should be removed regularly and cleaned. All paper dispensing units should be checked and filled daily or more often as required. Check and fill soap dispensers daily or as required by use. The entire floor area should be mopped with a cleaner/disinfectant solution daily. An occasional scrubbing with a deck brush may be required to remove stubborn dirt. Light fixtures should be cleaned on a regular basis and burned out bulbs replaced at once. 		
 occasional use of a powdered cleanser may be necessary to remove stains. All faucets, flush valves and other polished metal surfaces should be washed and dried. Wiping these surfaces with a treated cloth once a week will inhibit the formation of corrosion. All floor drains should be flushed with a bucket of water or hose at weekly intervals. Floor drain covers should be removed regularly and cleaned. All paper dispensing units should be checked and filled daily or more often as required. Check and fill soap dispensers daily or as required by use. The entire floor area should be mopped with a cleaner/disinfectant solution daily. An occasional scrubbing with a deck brush may be required to remove stubborn dirt. Light fixtures should be cleaned on a regular basis and burned out bulbs replaced at once. 		 Carefully wash exposed surfaces of the lavatories or wash basins using a
 All faucets, flush valves and other polished metal surfaces should be washed and dried. Wiping these surfaces with a treated cloth once a week will inhibit the formation of corrosion. All floor drains should be flushed with a bucket of water or hose at weekly intervals. Floor drain covers should be removed regularly and cleaned. All paper dispensing units should be checked and filled daily or more often as required. Check and fill soap dispensers daily or as required by use. The entire floor area should be mopped with a cleaner/disinfectant solution daily. An occasional scrubbing with a deck brush may be required to remove stubborn dirt. Light fixtures should be cleaned on a regular basis and burned out bulbs replaced at once. 		
 Floor drain covers should be removed regularly and cleaned. All paper dispensing units should be checked and filled daily or more often as required. Check and fill soap dispensers daily or as required by use. The entire floor area should be mopped with a cleaner/disinfectant solution daily. An occasional scrubbing with a deck brush may be required to remove stubborn dirt. Light fixtures should be cleaned on a regular basis and burned out bulbs replaced at once. 		• All faucets, flush valves and other polished metal surfaces should be washed and dried. Wiping these surfaces with a treated cloth once a week will inhibit the formation of
 All paper dispensing units should be checked and filled daily or more often as required. Check and fill soap dispensers daily or as required by use. The entire floor area should be mopped with a cleaner/disinfectant solution daily. An occasional scrubbing with a deck brush may be required to remove stubborn dirt. Light fixtures should be cleaned on a regular basis and burned out bulbs replaced at once. 		• All floor drains should be flushed with a bucket of water or hose at weekly intervals.
 Check and fill soap dispensers daily or as required by use. The entire floor area should be mopped with a cleaner/disinfectant solution daily. An occasional scrubbing with a deck brush may be required to remove stubborn dirt. Light fixtures should be cleaned on a regular basis and burned out bulbs replaced at once. 		Floor drain covers should be removed regularly and cleaned.
 The entire floor area should be mopped with a cleaner/disinfectant solution daily. An occasional scrubbing with a deck brush may be required to remove stubborn dirt. Light fixtures should be cleaned on a regular basis and burned out bulbs replaced at once. 		
Light fixtures should be cleaned on a regular basis and burned out bulbs replaced at once.		• The entire floor area should be mopped with a cleaner/disinfectant solution daily. An
once.		
Window screens should be cleaned regularly.		
		Window screens should be cleaned regularly.

– Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank –

EXHIBIT II

BATHHOUSE LOG

AREA # MONTH/YEAR	1					_				10		10	10		4.5	10	47	40	10	00	0.1		00	0.4	05		07		00	0.0	
	1	2	2 3	5 4	1 5	5 6) /	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	31
Contractor																															
Sweep floors and deck																															
Mop floors with																															
disinfectant																															
Wipe walls, windowsills,																															
louvers																															
Spay disinfectant on all																															
porcelain-clean				_			_																								
Fill dispensers, soap and																															
paper	_	_	_	_	_			_																							
Polish stainless and																															
mirrors	-			-	_	_	_																								
Clean baby changing stations																															
Sweep shower pads &																															
surrounding brdwalk																															
Empty Trash																															
Flush out Urinal-monthly																															
Bleach Inside - monthly																															
Park Staff - AM																															
Check for cleanliness																															
Flush as necessary																															

Park Staff - Mid Day															
Empty trash as needed															
Pick up litter on floors															
Flush as necessary															
Park Staff - PM															
Empty sanitary bags and trash															
Flush as necessary															
Park Staff															
Restock and organize															

COMMENTS

SECTION 4.00 - GENERAL CONTRACT CONDITIONS (PUR 1000)

For the purposes of 60A-1.002(7)(b), Florida Administrative Code, all terms in this Contract are considered "Special Conditions." The Form PUR 1000 General Contract Conditions, is incorporated by reference and can be accessed at MyFlorida.com, Department of Management Services (DMS). In the event of any conflict between the Form PUR 1000 and any Special Conditions, the Special Conditions shall take precedence unless the conflicting term in the PUR Form 1000 is required by any section of the Florida Statutes, in which case the statutory requirements shall take precedence.

- Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank -

SECTION 5.00 – PRICE SHEET FORM

The price quoted shall include everything necessary for the Contractor to do all things necessary for, or incidental to, the performance of work for restroom cleaning services in full accordance with the specifications of DEP Solicitation No. 2019027.

	ORIGINAL TERM (5 Years)								
No.	Deliverable	Price							
1	MONTHLY PRICE: (to complete all cleaning requirements for six (6) restrooms)	PRICE \$							
	RENEWAL TERM (Up to 5 Years)								
No.	Deliverable	Price							
1	MONTHLY PRICE: (to complete all cleaning requirements for six (6) restrooms)	PRICE \$							
	GRAND TOTAL PRICE FOR ORIGINAL TERM AND RENEWAL TERM	GRAND TOTAL PRICE * \$							

Note:

* Used for awarding Restroom Cleaning Services

Footnotes, notation, and exceptions made on this form shall not be considered.

SECTION 6.00 - VENDOR FINANCIAL ATTESTATION

Vendors shall complete and submit answers to the questions set forth below. To be eligible for Contract Award as a Responsible Vendor under section 287.012(25), F.S., Vendor must be able to respond "YES" to each statement below.

I,		am the		of
	(Authorized Representative's Name)	(Title)		
		, (the "Vendor"), and am authorized to	o represe	nt and
	(Vendor's Legal Name)			
	actually bind Vendor. Having been duly s pelief, the following:	sworn, I do hereby attest, to the best of r	ny know	ledge
1	. I have direct knowledge of the financ	ial condition and operations of Vendor.	□No	□Yes
2	. Vendor has sufficient financial resour and is current on all payments not in	ces to honor its short-term obligations dispute.	□No	□Yes
3	. Vendor has financial resources suffici and remain in business over the life o		□No	□Yes
4	. Vendor's operations generate income expenses.	e which exceeds Vendor's operating	□No	□Yes
5	. Vendor has the capacity to provide th services as specified in the Contract d response.		□No	□Yes

Signature

SECTION 7.00 - VENDOR RESPONSIBILITY DISCLOSURE

Vendors shall complete and submit answers to the questions set forth below. For each affirmative answer, Vendors shall provide a detailed, written explanation (1 page) relevant to the issue and attach copies of documents relevant to the written explanation(s) provided (unlimited pages). The Department reserves the right to request additional information, as needed, to determine a Vendor's Responsibility pursuant to section 287.012(25), F.S.

l,	am the	of
(Authorized Representative's Name)	(Title)	
	, (the "Vendor"), and am autl	horized to represent and

(Vendor's Legal Name)

contractually bind Vendor. Having been duly sworn, I do hereby attest, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the following:

Within the past 5 years, has the vendor:

1.	Been the subject of civil litigation or settlements?	□No	□Yes
2.	Been subject to criminal judgments or administrative actions?	□No	□Yes
3.	Been suspended or barred from participation in any competitive process or contract award?	□No	□Yes
4.	Had any licenses or certifications suspended, revoked, or canceled?	□No	□Yes
5.	Had any contracts or agreements terminated for cause?	□No	□Yes
6.	Been the subject of bankruptcy proceedings?	□No	□Yes
7.	Undergone a major change of organizational structure, ownership, or name?	□No	□Yes

Signature

SECTION 8.00 - VENDOR CONFLICTS OF INTEREST ATTESTATION

This solicitation is subject to Chapter 112, Florida Statutes. Vendors shall indicate whether or not any conflict exists regarding any Florida Department of Environmental Protection employee.

I,	am the	of
(Authorized Representative's Name)	(Title)	
	, (the "Vendor"), and am author	orized to represent and

(Vendor's Legal Name)

contractually bind Vendor. Having been duly sworn, I do hereby attest, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the following:

- Vendor has disclosed all officers, directors, employees, other agents that are presently an employee of the Florida Department of Environmental Protection; and
- Vendor has disclosed all employees that own, directly, or indirectly, an interest of five percent (5%) or more in the Bidder's company, or its affiliates; and
- Vendor's officers, directors, employees, or other agents will not create a conflict in any manner or degree that will adversely impact the performance of the services required to be performed under the Contract.

Employee Disclosure:

Full Legal Name	DEP Position Title	Disclosed Position Held or % of Ownership

Signature

SECTION 9.00 - VENDOR PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS ATTESTATION

All Bidders must complete section I. If the Bidder's principal place of business is outside the State of Florida, the Bidder must also have an attorney who is licensed to practice law, in the state of their principal place of business, complete Section II.

Section I. Bidder's Principal Place of Business

(Please select one)

The Bidder's principal place of business is in the State of Florida.

The Bidder's principal place of business is outside of the State of Florida.

Section II. Legal Opinion About Foreign State Preferences in Contracting

(Please select all that apply)

- □ The Bidder's principal place of business is in the State of ______ and it is my legal opinion that the laws of that state **do not grant a preference** in the letting of any or all public contracts to business entities whose principal places of business are in that state.
- □ The Bidder's principal place of business is in the State of ______ and it is my legal opinion that the laws of that state **grant the following preference(s)** in the letting of any or all public contracts to business entities whose principal places of business are in that state. [Please describe applicable preference(s) and identify applicable state law(s) below]
- □ The Bidder's principal place of business is in the **political subdivision** of ______ and it is my legal opinion that the laws of that political subdivision **grant a preference** in the letting of any or all public contracts to business entities whose principal places of business are in that political subdivision. [*Please describe applicable preference(s) and identify applicable law(s) below*]

BIDDER'S ATTORNEY	
Signature:	Phone #: () -
Name:	Address:
State of Licensure:	
Bar Number:	Date of Admission:

If the Department discovers that any information on this form is false after the award to the Bidder is made, the Department reserves the right to terminate the Contract and the Bidder will be liable for costs associated with re-procuring the commodities and/or contractual services.

SECTION 10.00 - VENDOR DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE ATTESTATION

Per section 287.087, Florida Statutes, whenever two or more bids, proposals, or replies that are equal with respect to price, quality, and service are received, the bid, proposal, or reply received from a business that certifies that it has a drug-free workplace in full compliance with the requirements of s. 287.087, F.S. shall be given preference in the award process.

l,	am the	of
(Authorized Representative's Name)	(Title)	
	, (the "Vendor"), and am au	thorized to represent and

(Vendor's Legal Name)

contractually bind Vendor. Having been duly sworn, I do hereby attest, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the following:

- □ Vendor **does** have a Drug-Free Workplace in full compliance with the requirements of s. 287.087, F.S.
- □ Vendor **does not** have a Drug-Free Workplace in full compliance with the requirements of s. 287.087, F.S.

Signature

SECTION 11.00 - VENDOR SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES LISTS ATTESTATION

Per section 287.135, Florida Statutes, agencies are prohibited from contracting with Vendors for commodities or contractual services valued at over \$1,000,000 that are on either the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List. Both lists are created pursuant to section 215.473, Florida Statutes (F.S.).

l,	am the	of
(Authorized Representative's Name)	(Title)	
	, (the "Vendor"), and am au	thorized to represent and

(Vendor's Legal Name)

contractually bind Vendor. Having been duly sworn, I do hereby attest, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the following:

The Vendor submitting this Response is not listed on any of the following lists:

- Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List
- Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List
- Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List

I understand that, pursuant to section 287.135, Florida Statutes, the submission of a false certification may subject Vendor to immediate contract termination, civil penalties, attorney's fees, and/or other costs.

Signature

SECTION 12.00 - CLIENT REFERENCE FORM

The Vendor shall complete and submit this entire form. Using the form(s) provided in this Section, Vendor shall identify and include three (3) current and/or past clients (for each service if bidding on both), either businesses or governmental agencies, to which the Vendor has provided commodities and/or contractual services of similar scope and size as those identified in the ITB within the last five (5) years.

l,	am the	of
(Authorized Representative's Name)	(Title)	
	, (the "Vendor"), and am	authorized to represent and

(Vendor's Legal Name)

contractually bind Vendor. Having been duly sworn, I do hereby:

- 1. Grant permission to the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (the "Department") to contact the references listed below at a time and using a method convenient to the Department.
- 2. Waive any claim, either contractual or otherwise, to confidentiality that exists between the listed Client(s) and Vendor regarding Vendor's performance under the listed contract(s).
- 3. Release the Client's Contact(s), or their successors, or designees, to discuss with, and provide any requested information to, the Department concerning Vendor's performance under the listed contract(s).
- 4. Release, forever discharge, and hold harmless the Department and the listed Client(s) from any claim or liability that Vendor may make related to the loss, either real or perceived, that may exist due, in whole or in part, to the Department's evaluation of the information disclosed by the listed Client(s) regarding Vendor's performance.

I understand that the purpose of this permission and release is for the Department to evaluate and assess Vendor's eligibility for Contract Award pursuant to the indicated solicitation, and that any such information provided may be subject to disclosure under Chapter 119, F.S., the Florida Constitution, or other authority.

Signature

Client #1 *If Vendor has undergone a change of name, ownership, or organization, the name under which the Vendor operated at the time of performance shall be disclosed in this section.										
	Client Name & Internet Ad									
Client Name:	Client Name:									
Webpage Address:	Nebpage Address:									
	Client Contact Information	on								
Name:										
Title:										
Street Address:										
City, State, and ZIP:										
Email Address:										
Telephone Number:										
Commodity/Service Details										
Period of Services:	From:	То:								
Contract Value:										
	Commodity/Service Descrip	tion*								

Client #2 *If Vendor has undergone a change of name, ownership, or organization, the name under which the Vendor operated at the time of performance shall be disclosed in this section.										
Client Name & Internet Address										
Client Name:	Client Name:									
Webpage Address:	Nebpage Address:									
Client Contact Information										
Name:										
Title:										
Street Address:										
City, State, and ZIP:										
Email Address:										
Telephone Number:										
Commodity/Service Details										
Period of Services:	From:	To:								
Contract Value:										
	Commodity/Service Desc	cription*								

Client #3 *If Vendor has undergone a change of name, ownership, or organization, the name under which the Vendor operated at the time of performance shall be disclosed in this section.										
Client Name & Internet Address										
Client Name:	Client Name:									
Webpage Address:	Vebpage Address:									
Client Contact Information										
Name:										
Title:										
Street Address:										
City, State, and ZIP:										
Email Address:										
Telephone Number:										
Commodity/Service Details										
Period of Services:	From:	То:								
Contract Value:										
	Commodity/Service Descrip	tion*								

SECTION 13.00 – BIDDER/SUBCONTRACTOR SUMMARY FORM

BIDDER IDENTIFICATION (to be completed by the Bidder.)

As Bidder to this Solicitation, I / we intend to utilize the following team in connection with this project. In the

spaces provided b	pelow, list the nan	ne c	of th	ne B	idd	ler/	Sub	cor	ntra	cto	r ar	nd i	ndio	ate	e th	e O	ffic	e of	Su	ppli	er l	Dive	ersit	y
business category	<pre>/ of each one liste</pre>	d.																						
		INDICATE THE ONE OFFICE OF SUPPLIER DIVERSITY CATEGORY THAT BEST																						
											BES EACH ORGANIZATION LISTED													
		MINOTIRY						CERTIFIED MBE					NON-CERTIFIED MBE					NON-PROFIT ORG.						
		BUSINESS																- Chief						
LIST NAMES OF BIDDER(S)/ SUBCONTRACTOR(S)			CL	ASS.	IFIC		ON								1	T	1	T		1	T	-	T	
		NON-MINORITY (A)	SMALL BUSINESS (STATE) (B)	SMALL BUSINESS (FEDERAL) (C)	GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY (D)	NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATION (F)	P.R.I.D.E. (G)	VETERAN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (L)	AFRICAN AMERICAN (H)	HISPANIC (I)	ASIAN/HAWAIIAN (J)	NATIVE AMERICAN (K)	AMERICAN WOMAN (M)	VETERAN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (W)	AFRICAN AMERICAN (N)	HISPANIC (O)	ASIAN/HAWAIIAN (P)	NATIVE AMERICAN (Q)	AMERICAN WOMAN ®	VETERAN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (Y)	BOARD IS 51% OR MORE MINORITY (S)	51% OR MORE MINORITY OFFICERS (T)	51% OR MORE MINORITY COMMUNITY	OTHER NON-PROFIT (V)
Section B	ACKNOWLEDGE	ME	NT	(to	be	con	nple	eteo	d by	, the	e Bi	dde	er(s)).)	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	-	<u></u>	-
I / WE HEREBY C correct.	ERTIFY that, as B	idde	er t	o th	nis (Soli	cita	atio	n, t	hat	the	e in	for	ma	tior	ı pr	ovi	dec	d he	erei	n is	tru	ie a	nd
Bidder	Si	gna	tur	e																				
Name and Title	D	ate																						
			107		**:	*IM	PO	RT/	ANT	·***					107	DF								

BOTH SECTIONS OF THIS FORM MUST BE COMPLETED AND SECTION B MUST BE DATED AND BEAR THE **BIDDER'S SIGNATURE FOR THIS FORM TO BE DEEMED RESPONSIVE.**

Please review to ensure all sections are complete and the form is acknowledged correctly.

SECTION A

SECTION 14.00 - PAST PERFORMANCE EVALUATION FORM

The following questions will be posed to the clients identified in the Respondent's Proposal. Answers will be scored according to the points specified for each of the below questions.

Reference Name & Company:				
Vendor's Name:				
Date of Interview:				
Interviewer:				
Please describe the work the Ve	ndor performed for Reference	ce's company:		
For the next questions, please rat	e the Vendor's performance	using the following	ng scale:	
Superior (4) Excellent (3	Satisfactory (2)	Fair (1)	Poor (0)]
1. How would you rate the	Vendor's overall quality of v	work?		
2. How would you rate the	Vendor's use of adequate p	ersonnel in quant	tity?	
3. How would you rate the	Vendor's use of adequate p	ersonnel in exper	ience?	-
4. How would you rate the	Vendor's use of adequate p	ersonnel in profes	ssionalism?	-
5. How well did the Vendo	r adhere to the agreed-upon	schedule?		
6. How well did the Vendo	r perform the daily task of cl	eaning the bathro	poms?	-
	periorin the daily task of th	0		
7. How well did the Vendo	r perform the daily task of re	-		-

SECTION 15.00 – PROPOSED CONTRACT

The proposed contract language contained below should be reviewed by all prospective contractors. In responding to DEP Solicitation No. 2019027 a prospective contractor has agreed to accept the terms and conditions of the contract contained in this Section. The Department reserves the right to make modifications to this contract if it is deemed to be in the best interest of the Department or the State of Florida.

DEP Contract No. _____

PROPOSED CONTRACT

BETWEEN

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

AND

Contractor Name

THIS CONTRACT is entered into between the Department of Environmental Protection (Department), an agency of the State of Florida, and *Contractor Name Fill in the address of Contractor* (Contractor), to provide restroom cleaning services (Services) for Delnor-Wiggins Pass State Park, located at 11135 Gulfshore Drive, Naples, Florida, 34108.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

SERVICES AND PERFORMANCE

1. SERVICES. Department does hereby retain, and Contractor agrees to provide restroom cleaning services (Services) for Delnor-Wiggins Pass State Park, located at 11135 Gulfshore Drive, Naples, Florida, 34108, as described in ITB 2019027 ("Solicitation") and Contractor's response thereto, incorporated herein by reference, and in accordance with **Attachment A**, Scope of Work (Scope) and all exhibits and Attachments named and incorporated herein by reference. Contractor has been determined to be a vendor to the Department under this Contract.

2. WORK.

A. Contractor shall provide the services specified in the Scope ("Work").

B. Contractor, or its subcontractors if authorized under this Contract, shall not commence Work until the Contract, and any necessary Task Assignment Notification Form, Amendments or Change Orders, have been fully executed by both Department and Contractor

C. There is no minimum amount of Work guaranteed as a result of this Contract. Any and all Work assigned will be at the sole discretion of the Department.

D. Department reserves the right to not authorize any Work, and may suspend or terminate for cause any Work assigned to Contractor under this or any other contract, if and in the event that the Department and Contractor (or any of its affiliates or authorized subcontractors) are adverse in any litigation, administrative proceeding or alternative dispute resolution, until such adverse relationship is resolved either by agreement or by final non-appealable order of a court.

3. STANDARD OF CARE FOR PERFORMANCE.

A. Contractor shall perform as an independent contractor and not as an agent, representative, or employee of the Department.

B. Contractor shall perform the services in a proper and satisfactory manner as determined by the Department. Any and all such equipment, products or materials necessary to perform these services, or requirements as further stated herein, shall be supplied by the Contractor.

C. Contractor shall provide competent, suitably qualified personnel. Contractor must notify the Department's Contract Manager of any changes in the personnel identified in this Contract. Notification shall include a detailed explanation of the need to change personnel and the Contractor's documentation that proposed replacement personnel have equal or greater qualifications and experience.

D. Contractor shall perform the services in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by other contractors performing the same or similar services under similar circumstances at the time performed.

4. TERM OF CONTRACT.

A. Initial Term. This Contract shall begin upon execution by both parties and shall remain in effect for a period of five (5) years, inclusive.

B. Renewal Term. An "X" beside the correct provision in this section signifies that the provision is applicable to the Contract.

- This Contract may be renewed, in writing, on the same terms and conditions as the original Contract and any amendments thereto, for a period no greater than five (5) years. All renewals are contingent upon satisfactory performance by Contractor. Renewals may be for the entire period or in increments.
- □ This Contract may not be renewed.

COMPENSATION

5. COMPENSATION.

A. As consideration for the services rendered by Contractor under the terms of this Contract, the Department shall pay the Contractor per month on a fixed fee schedule basis per Attachment B, Rate Schedule. Based on this monthly rate, maximum compensation for the completion of Work as specified in the Scope for the original Contract term of five (5) years shall not exceed \$_____.

B. Contractor shall not be compensated for services performed prior to execution of this Contract, nor for services that exceed the funding amount specified herein or in any amendment to this Contract.

6. ANNUAL APPROPRIATION. Department's performance and obligation to pay under this Contract is contingent upon an annual appropriation by the Florida Legislature. Authorization for continuation and completion of Work and payment associated therewith may be rescinded with proper notice at the discretion of the Department if state or federal appropriations are reduced or eliminated.

7. PAYMENT METHOD.

- A. Contractor shall submit invoices to the Department on a monthly basis in the amount of _____.
- B. All invoices submitted must be sufficient detail for a proper pre-audit and post-audit review.

C. Department must approve the final deliverable(s) before the Contractor may submit final invoice and any forms.

D. Each invoice, including appropriate supporting documentation as required herein, shall be submitted via email to the following:

Florida Department of Environmental Protection Insert Program Area name Attn: insert Email address:

E. Contractor shall submit invoices to the Department within thirty (30) days after the date of the Department's written approval of each interim deliverable or the final deliverable specified in the Scope. Contractor's failure to submit invoices within this timeframe may result in **forfeiture** of retainage, if applicable, suspension or termination of remaining work, or the Contractor's **forfeiture** of any unpaid balance for such deliverables.

8. TRAVEL. An "X" beside the correct provision in this section signifies that the provision is applicable to the Contract.

□ Travel is not authorized under this Contract.

- In Travel costs are included in the fixed cost amounts of this Contract.
- □ Travel costs shall be paid on a cost-reimbursement basis in accordance with the paragraph contained herein of this Contract.

9. SUBCONTRACTOR PAYMENTS AND RELEASES. In addition to the invoicing requirements above, the following requirements for payment of invoices for Services shall apply if subcontractors are utilized:

A. Contractor shall pay all subcontractors and vendors under this Contract within seven (7) working days from the date of receipt of payment from the Department, excluding the final payment. If the Contractor receives less than full payment from the Department for the services or goods of the subcontractors or vendors, the Contractor shall pay subcontractors and vendors in at least the same proportion as that paid by the Department. Penalties for non-compliance and provisions for legal assistance for subcontractors are included in Subsection 287.0585(1), F.S.

B. Contractor shall submit, with each invoice for Work where subcontractors or suppliers performed Work during the previous invoice period, lien waivers or other documentation of payment from each subcontractor or supplier for Work done during the previous invoice period.

10. PROMPT PAYMENT.

A. Department's Contract Manager shall have five (5) business days, unless a greater period is specified herein, to inspect and approve an invoice. Department shall submit a request for payment to DFS within twenty (20) business days; and DFS shall issue a warrant within ten (10) business days thereafter. Days are calculated from the latter of the date the invoice is received or services received, inspected, and approved. Invoice payment requirements do not start until a proper and correct invoice has been received. Invoices which have to be returned to the Contractor for correction(s) will result in an uncompensated delay in payment. A Vendor Ombudsman has been established within DFS who may be contacted if a Contractor is experiencing problems in obtaining timely payment(s) from a State agency. The Vendor Ombudsman may be contacted at (850) 413-5516, per section 215.422, F.S.

B. If a warrant in payment of an invoice is not issued within forty (40) business days after receipt of a correct invoice and receipt, inspection, and approval of the goods and services, the Department shall pay the Contractor interest at a rate as established by section 55.03(1), F.S., on the unpaid balance of the invoice. Interest payments of less than \$1 will not be issued unless Contractor requests such payment. The interest rate for each calendar year for which the term of this Contract is in effect can be obtained from DFS' Vendor Ombudsman at the telephone numbers provided above, per section 215.422, F.S.

11. RELEASE OF CLAIMS. Upon payment for satisfactory completion of any portion of the Work, the Contractor shall execute and deliver to the Department a release of all claims against the Department arising under, or by virtue of, the Work, except claims which are specifically exempted by the Contractor to be set forth therein (**Contractor Release**, using **Attachment E**, - Contractor Affidavit/Release of Claims). Receipt by the Department of the Contractor's Release is a condition of final payment under this Contract. Unless otherwise provided in this Contract, by State law or otherwise expressly agreed to by the parties to this Contract, final payment or settlement upon termination of this Contract shall not constitute a release or waiver of the Department's claims against the Contractor, or the Contractor's sureties, subcontractors, successors or assigns under this Contract or as against applicable performance and payment bonds.

12. PHYSICAL ACCESS AND INSPECTION. As applicable, the Department personnel shall be given access to and may observe and inspect Work being performed under this Contract, including by any of the following methods:

A. Contractor shall provide access to any location or facility on which the Contractor is performing Work, or storing or staging equipment, materials or documents;

B. Contractor shall permit inspection of any facility, equipment, practices, or operations required in performance of any Work; and,

C. Contractor shall allow and facilitate sampling and monitoring of any substances, soils, materials or parameters at any location reasonable or necessary to assure compliance with any Work or legal requirements.

PARTY REPRESENTATIVES

13. NOTICE. All notices and written communication between the parties shall be sent by electronic mail, U.S. Mail, a courier delivery service, or delivered in person. Notices shall be considered delivered when reflected by an electronic mail read receipt, a courier service delivery receipt, other mail service delivery receipt, or when receipt is acknowledged by recipient.

14. IDENTIFICATION OF CONTRACT MANAGERS. All matters shall be directed to the Contract Managers for appropriate action or disposition. Any changes to the Contract Manager information identified below must be noticed, in writing, to the other party within ten (10) calendar days of the change. Either party may provide notice to the other party by email identifying a change of a designated Contract Manager and providing the new contact information for the newly designated Contract Manager. Such notice is sufficient to effectuate this change without requiring a written amendment to the Contract. Department and the Contractor Contract Managers and contact information are provided below:

<u>Contractor</u>	<u>Department</u>
Contractor Name	Department of Environmental Protection
«Contractor_Address»	Delnor-Wiggins Pass State Park
«City», «State» «Zip»	11135 Gulfshore Drive
Attn: «Contractor_Contract_Mgr»	Naples, FL 34108
Phone Number: «Contractor_Phone_Number»	Attn: Terrance Torvund
Email: «Contractor_Email»	Phone Number: 239-566-7423
	Email: <u>Terrance.K.T.Torvund@dep.state.fl.us</u>

15. CHANGE ORDERS AND AMENDMENTS. Department may at any time, by written order designated to be a Change Order, make any change in the Work within the general scope of this Contract (e.g., specifications, method or manner of performance, requirements, etc.). All Change Orders are subject to the mutual agreement of both parties as evidenced in writing. Any change which causes an increase or decrease in Contractor's cost or time shall require an appropriate adjustment and modification by Amendment to this Contract. Following execution of this Contract, any future

Amendments or Change Orders may be executed by the Department representative with appropriate delegated authority.

CONSEQUENCES FOR FAILURE TO PERFORM

16. DISPUTE RESOLUTION. Any dispute concerning performance of the Contract shall be decided as follows:

A. All claims or disputes (Claims) must be presented to the Department in writing within thirty (30) days of the date such Claim arises (Notice of Dispute). The Notice of Dispute shall set out in detail all aspects of the disputed matters to be resolved, including the specific relief sought by the Contractor. Claims not presented by Notice of Dispute to Contract Manager shall be deemed waived by the Contractor.

B. The parties shall make a good faith attempt to resolve Claims which may arise from time to time by informal conference within ten (10) days of the Notice of Dispute.

C. Within ten (10) days of the informal conference, the Department shall provide Contractor a detailed written response to the Claim. A formal conference of the parties shall be convened no later than thirty (30) days following the Department's response to the Notice of Dispute, unless the parties mutually agree in writing to a longer period of time within which to schedule a formal conference.

- 1) All persons necessary to resolution of the claim or disputed matter shall attend the formal conference.
- 2) Minutes of the formal conference shall be taken, recorded, transcribed, and signed by the Department and the Contractor. Any terms of settlement and/or resolution reached shall be signed by all persons authorized to resolve the Claim.

D. Either party may request mediation of unresolved Claims, with the party seeking mediation to bear the expense of mediation.

E. Any Claim not resolved at formal conference or mediation, may be the subject of a complaint filed in a court of competent jurisdiction in Leon County, Florida.

17. FINANCIAL CONSEQUENCES FOR UNSATISFACTORY PERFORMANCE.

A. No payment will be made for deliverables deemed unsatisfactory by the Department. In the event that a deliverable is deemed unsatisfactory by the Department, the Contractor shall re-perform the services needed for submittal of a satisfactory deliverable, at no additional cost to Department, within thirty (30) days of being notified of the unsatisfactory deliverable.

B. If a satisfactory deliverable is not submitted within the specified time frame, the Department may, in its sole discretion: 1) assess liquidated damages if specified in the Contract or its attachments; 2) request from the Contractor agreement to a reduction in the amount payable; 3) suspend all Work until satisfactory performance is achieved, or 4) terminate the Contract for failure to perform.

18. CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN. In the event that deliverables are unsatisfactory or are not submitted within the specified timeframe, the Department Contract Manager may, by letter specifying the failure of performance under the Contract, request that a proposed Corrective Action Plan (CAP) be submitted by the Contractor to the Department. All CAPs must be able to be implemented and performed in no more than sixty (60) days.

A. A CAP shall be submitted within ten (10) calendar days of the date of the letter request from the Department. The CAP shall be sent to the Department Contract Manager for review and approval. Within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of a CAP, the Department shall notify the Contractor in writing whether the CAP proposed has been accepted. If the CAP is not accepted, the Contractor shall have ten (10) calendar days from receipt of the Department letter rejecting the proposal to submit a revised proposed CAP. Failure to obtain the Department approval of a CAP as specified above shall result in the Department's termination of the Contract for cause as authorized in the Contract.

B. Upon the Department's notice of acceptance of a proposed CAP, the Contractor shall have ten (10) calendar days, or longer if specified in the approved CAP, to commence implementation of the accepted plan. Acceptance of the proposed CAP by the Department does not relieve the Contractor of any of its obligations under the Contract. In the event the CAP fails to correct or eliminate performance deficiencies by the Contractor, the Department shall retain the right to require additional or further remedial steps, or to terminate the Contract for failure to perform. No actions approved by the Department or steps taken by the Contractor shall estop the Department from subsequently asserting any deficiencies in performance. Contractor shall continue to implement the CAP until all deficiencies are corrected. Reports on the progress of the CAP will be made to the Department as requested by the Department Contract Manager.

C. Failure to respond to a Department request for a CAP shall result in suspension or termination of the Contract.

19. PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE BONDS. An "X" beside the correct provision in this section signifies that the provision is applicable to the Contract.

- □ No Payment or Performance bonds are required.
- □ Contractor shall provide executed Payment and Performance Bonds naming the Department as obligee, issued by a surety acceptable to the Department, in the amount(s) of *\$ insert amount*.
- Contractor may be required to provide executed Payment and/or Performance Bonds naming the Department as obligee, issued by a surety acceptable to the Department, in an amount of up to one hundred and twenty percent (120%) of the total anticipated cost of any Work.

20. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES. An "X" beside the correct provision in this section signifies that the provision is applicable to the Contract.

- No liquidated damages will be assessed.
- □ In addition to other remedies elsewhere in this Contract, and as provided by law, unless otherwise stipulated in the Scope, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees to pay liquidated damages to the Department as follows:
 - A. Contractor acknowledges that time is of the essence for all services provided under this Contract, and whereas the actual damages to be suffered by late performance are incapable of accurate calculation, the parties agree to the following as a reasonable estimation thereof as liquidated damages. In addition to any other provisions of this Contract, in the event that the deliverable identified in the Scope, is not completed and submitted by the close of business on the date the deliverable is due, the compensation amount stated for that portion of the Work may be reduced by five percent (5%) per week for each week the deliverable is late, with the total amount of the liquidated damages not to exceed the total compensation amount of the Scope deliverable.
 - B. The date of submission shall be the date of receipt by the Department.
 - C. If no Department receipt date appears or the date is illegible, the date of submission shall be deemed to be five (5) days prior to receipt by the Contract Manager.
 - D. If completion is or will be justifiably delayed due to reasons as set out in paragraph contained herein, the Department may grant an extension of time as evidenced by a properly executed Amendment.
 - E. If the deliverable(s) fail to comply with the requirements of this Contract, or if questions arise from review and the Contractor is so notified and requested to respond, the Contractor shall furnish the required additions, deletions, or revisions in accordance with the Scope at no additional cost to the Department.

- F. If the additions, deletions, and revisions are not submitted to the Department's Contract Manager in accordance with the Scope, the compensation stated for that portion of the Work may be reduced by five percent (5%) for each week that the requested deliverable is late, as specified. The total reduction shall not exceed the total amount of the Work.
- G. Contractor's failure to respond to a request to correct the deliverables will result in termination of the Work and **forfeiture** of any unpaid balance for such deliverables. Additionally, the Department, at its discretion, may re-assign future Work.

21. RETAINAGE

A. Department reserves the right to establish the amount and application of retainage on the Work to a maximum of 5% of the monthly payment for each day work is not completed per the scope of work. Any retainage to be applied shall be specified in the Scope. Retainage shall be withheld from each payment to the Contractor pending satisfactory completion of Work and approval of all deliverables.

B. Department reserves the right to withhold payment of retainage for the Contractor's failure to respond to or correct identified deficiencies within the timeframe stipulated in the Scope. Department shall provide written notification to the Contractor of identified deficiencies and the Department's intent to withhold retainage on the Work. Contractor's failure to rectify the identified deficiency within the timeframe stated in the Department's notice will result in forfeiture of retainage by the Contractor.

C. If the Contractor fails to perform the requested Scope, or fails to perform the Work in a satisfactory manner, Contractor shall forfeit its right to payment for the Work and the retainage called for under the entire Scope. Failure to perform includes, but is not limited to, failure to submit the required deliverables or failure to provide adequate documentation that the work was actually performed.

D. No retainage shall be released or paid for uncompleted Work while a Contract is suspended.

E. Except as otherwise provided above, the Contractor shall be paid the retainage associated with the Work, provided the Contractor has completed the work and submits an invoice for retainage held in accordance with paragraph contained herein above.

<u>LIABILITY</u>

22. INSURANCE.

A. <u>Required Coverage</u>. At all times during the Contract the Contractor, at its sole expense, shall maintain insurance coverage of such types and with such terms and limits described below. The limits of coverage under each policy maintained by the Contractor shall not be interpreted as limiting the Contractor's liability and obligations under the Contract. All insurance policies shall be through insurers licensed and authorized to issue policies in Florida, or alternatively, Contractor may provide coverage through a self-insurance program established and operating under the laws of Florida. Additional insurance requirements for this Contract may be required elsewhere in this Contract, however the <u>minimum</u> insurance requirements applicable to this Contract are:

- i. <u>Commercial General Liability Insurance</u>. The Contractor shall provide adequate commercial general liability insurance coverage and hold such liability insurance at all times during the Contract. The Department of Environmental Protection, its employees, and officers shall be named as an additional insured on any general liability policies. The minimum limits shall be \$200,000 each individual's claim and \$300,000 each occurrence.
- ii. <u>Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability Coverage</u>. The Contractor shall provide workers' compensation, in accordance with Chapter 440, F.S., and employer's liability insurance with minimum limits of \$100,000 per accident, \$100,000 per person, and \$500,000 policy aggregate. Such policies shall cover all employees engaged in any work under the Contract.

- iii. <u>Commercial Automobile Insurance</u>. If the Contractor's duties include the use of a commercial vehicle, the Contractor shall maintain automobile liability, bodily injury, and property damage coverage. Insuring clauses for both bodily injury and property damage shall provide coverage on an occurrence basis. The Department of Environmental Protection, its employees, and officers shall be named as an additional insured on any automobile insurance policy. The minimum limits shall be as follows:
 - \$200,000/300,000 Automobile Liability Combined Single Limit for Company-Owned Vehicles, if applicable
 - \$200,000/300,000 Hired and Non-owned Automobile Liability Coverage
- iv. <u>Other Insurance</u>. Additional insurance may be required by federal law, where applicable, if any work proceeds over or adjacent to water, including but not limited to Jones Act, Longshoreman's and Harbor Worker's, or the inclusion of any applicable rider to worker's compensation insurance, and any necessary watercraft insurance, with limits of not less than \$300,000 each. Questions concerning required coverage should be directed to the U.S. Department of Labor or to the parties' insurance carrier.

B. <u>Insurance Requirements for Sub-Contractors</u>. Department shall not be liable to any subcontractor for any expenses or liabilities incurred under any subcontract, regardless of whether the Department has approved such subcontract or subcontractor. Contractor shall be solely liable to its subcontractor(s) for all expenses and liabilities incurred under any subcontract. Any subcontracts made under or in performance of this Contract must include the same conditions specified in this Contract, with the exception of insurance requirements (paragraph contained herein), and shall include a release of any rights, claims or liabilities against the Department. The level of insurance to be carried by subcontractors performing work under this Contract shall be at the discretion of Contractor.

C. <u>Exceptions to Additional Insured Requirements</u>. If the Contractor's insurance is provided through an insurance trust, the Contractor shall instead add the Department of Environmental Protection, its employees, and officers as an additional covered party everywhere the Contract requires them to be added as an additional insured. Further, notwithstanding the requirements above, if Contractor is self-insured, then the Department of Environmental Protection, its employees, and officers do not need to be listed as additional insureds.

D. <u>Deductibles.</u> The Department shall be exempt from, and in no way liable for, any sums of money representing a deductible in any insurance policy. The payment of such deductible shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor providing such insurance.

E. <u>Proof of Insurance</u>. Upon execution of this Contract, the Contractor shall provide the Department documentation demonstrating the existence and amount for each type of applicable insurance coverage **prior to** performance of any work under this Contract. Upon receipt of written request from the Department, the Contractor shall furnish the Department with proof of applicable insurance coverage by standard form certificates of insurance, a self-insured authorization, or other certification of self-insurance.

F. <u>Failure to Maintain Coverage</u>. In the event that any applicable coverage is cancelled by the insurer for any reason, the Contractor shall immediately notify the Department of such cancellation and shall obtain adequate replacement coverage conforming to the requirements herein and provide proof of such replacement coverage within ten (10) calendar days after the cancellation of coverage.

23. INDEMNIFICATION.

A. Contractor shall be fully liable for the actions of its agents, employees, partners, or subcontractors and shall fully indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the State of Florida, the Department, and the State of Florida Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund, and their officers, agents, and employees, from suits, actions, damages, and costs of every name and description, including attorneys' fees, arising from or relating to personal injury and damage to real or personal tangible property alleged to be caused in whole or in part by the Contractor, its agents, employees, partners, or subcontractors, provided, however, that the Contractor shall not indemnify for that portion of

any loss or damages proximately caused by the negligent act or omission of the State of Florida, the Department, and the State of Florida Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund.

B. Further, the Contractor shall fully indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the State and Department from any suits, actions, damages, and costs of every name and description, including attorneys' fees, arising from or relating to violation or infringement of a trademark, copyright, patent, trade secret or intellectual property right, provided, however, that the foregoing obligation shall not apply to the Department's misuse or modification of the Contractor's products or the Department's operation or use of the Contractor's products in a manner not contemplated by this Contract. If any product is the subject of an infringement suit, or in the Contractor's opinion is likely to become the subject of such a suit, the Contractor may at its sole expense procure for the Department the right to continue using the product or to modify it to become non-infringing. If the Contractor shall remove the product and refund the Department the right to continue using the product, the Contractor shall remove the product and refund the Department the amounts paid in excess of a reasonable rental for past use. Department shall not be liable for any royalties.

C. The Contractor's obligations under the preceding two (2) paragraphs with respect to any legal action are contingent upon the State or the Department giving Contractor 1) written notice of any action or threatened action, 2) the opportunity to take over and settle or defend any such action at the Contractor's sole expense, and 3) assistance in defending the action at the Contractor's sole expense.

THIRD PARTIES

24. SUBCONTRACTING. An "X" beside the correct provision in this section signifies that the provision is applicable to the Contract.

- □ Contractor shall not subcontract any work under this Contract.
- A. Contractor shall not subcontract any work under this Contract without the prior written consent of the Department's Contract Manager. Department reserves the right to reject any proposed subcontractor based upon the Department's prior experience with subcontractor, subcontractor's reputation, or the Department's lack of adequate assurance of performance by subcontractor. Contractor agrees to be responsible for the fulfillment of all work elements included in any subcontract and agrees to be responsible for the payment of all monies due under any subcontract.
 - B. Department shall not be liable to any subcontractor for any expenses or liabilities incurred under any subcontract, regardless of whether the Department has approved such subcontract or subcontractor. Contractor shall be solely liable to its subcontractor(s) for all expenses and liabilities incurred under any subcontract. Any subcontracts made under or in performance of this Contract must include the same conditions specified in this Contract, with the exception of insurance requirements (paragraph contained herein), and shall include a release of any rights, claims or liabilities against the Department. The level of insurance to be carried by subcontractors performing work under this Contract shall be at the discretion of Contractor.

25. NONASSIGNABILITY. Contractor shall not sell, assign or transfer any of its rights, duties or obligations under this Contract (its **Rights and Duties**), without the prior written consent of the Department. Contractor shall remain liable for performance of its Rights and Duties, regardless of any assignment to or assumption by any third party, notwithstanding any approval thereof by the Department. However, the Department may expressly release the Contractor from any and all Rights and Duties through a novation accompanying an approved assignment. Department may assign the Department's Rights and Duties but shall give prior written notice of its intent to do so to the Contractor. The foregoing notwithstanding, the Contractor hereby assigns to the State any and all claims it has with respect to the Contract under the antitrust laws of the United States and the State.

26. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. This Contract is neither intended nor shall it be construed to grant any rights, privileges or interest in any third party without the mutual written agreement of the parties hereto.

SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION

27. SUSPENSION.

A. Department may order the Contractor in writing to suspend, delay or interrupt all or any part of the Work for failure to perform, or as otherwise specified herein, such period of time as the Department may determine to be appropriate for any of the following reasons:

1.) Contractor fails to timely and properly correct deficiencies in or performs unsatisfactory work;

2.) Contractor's or subcontractor's insurer or surety notifies the Department that any of its required insurance or bonds has lapsed or will lapse, and the Contractor fails to provide replacement insurance or bonds acceptable to the Department before the insurance or bond cancellation or termination date;

3.) Contractor or subcontractor materially violates safety laws or other constraints;

4.) Department determines that there is a threat to the public health, safety or welfare that necessitates such suspension; or

5.) For the convenience of the Department.

B. If the performance of all or any part of the Work is suspended, delayed or interrupted for an unreasonable period of time by an act of the Department in administration of the Work, or by the Department's failure to act within a reasonable time to review or approve an invoice, the Department shall provide an equitable extension of the time allowed to complete the Work and modify the Scope accordingly. However, no adjustment shall be made under this clause for any suspension, delay or interruption if and to the extent that:

1.) Performance would have been suspended, delayed or interrupted by any other cause, including the fault or negligence of the Contractor; or

2.) Equitable adjustment is provided for (or excluded) under any other provision of this Contract.

C. Contractor shall not be compensated for Work performed subsequent to a notice of suspension by Department.

28. TERMINATION.

A. Department may terminate this Contract at any time for cause, in the event of the failure of the Contractor to fulfill any of its obligations. Prior to termination, the Department shall provide ten (10) calendar days written notice of its intent to terminate for cause, including the reasons for such, and shall provide the Contractor an opportunity to consult with the Department regarding the reason(s) for termination. Contractor may be afforded the possibility of curing any default at the sole discretion of the Department.

B. The Department may terminate this Contract without cause and for its convenience by giving thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the Contractor. Termination for convenience shall not entitle either party to any indirect, special or resulting damages, lost profits, costs or penalties, and the Contractor shall be entitled only to recover those amounts earned by it for authorized deliverables completed up to the date of termination (or as may be agreed to in writing by the Department for completion of all or any portion of the Work in process).

SPECIAL CONDITIONS

29. ADDITIONAL QUANTITIES. For a period not exceeding the term of this contract, the Department reserves the right to acquire additional quantities on an as-needed basis, depending on the availability of funds, at the same unit price(s), terms and conditions.

NOTE: This section supersedes Section 6.00, General Contract Conditions (PUR-1000), Paragraph 5, Additional Quantities.

30. ADDITIONS / DELETIONS. During the term of the contract resulting from this bid, the Department shall have the right to make product changes that result in additions, deletions, or revisions to awarded items / services. Specifications and prices of items added or revised must be agreed upon in writing by both the Department and Contractor. Prices of added or revised items shall be mutually agreed upon by the Department and Contractor.

31. DISCLOSURE OF LITIGATION. The contractor shall promptly notify the Department of any criminal litigation, investigations or proceedings which arise during the term involving the contractor, or, to the extent the contractor is aware, any of the contractor's subcontractors or any of the foregoing entities' then-current officers or directors. In addition, the contractor shall promptly notify the Department of any civil litigation, arbitration or proceeding which arises during the term of the contract and extensions thereto, to which the contractor (or, to the extent the contractor is aware, any Subcontractor hereunder) is a party, and which involves:

A claim or written allegation of fraud against the contractor or, to the extent the contractor is aware, any subcontractor hereunder by a governmental or public entity arising out of their business dealings with governmental or public entities. All notices under this section must be provided to the Department within thirty (30) business days following the date on which the contractor first becomes aware of any such litigation, investigation, arbitration or other proceeding (collectively, a Proceeding). Details of settlements, which are prevented from disclosure by the terms of the settlement, may be annotated as such.

GENERAL CONDITIONS

32. ATTORNEY'S FEES. In the event of any legal action to enforce the terms of this Contract, each party shall bear its own attorney's fees and costs.

33. CONFLICT OF INTEREST. Contractor covenants and warrants that it presently has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, which would conflict in any manner or degree with its performance of this Contract or the Services required hereunder.

34. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW. Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local rules and regulations in providing services to the Department under this Contract including, but not limited to, local health and safety rules and regulations. This provision shall be included in all subcontracts issued as a result of this Contract.

35. DISQUALIFICATION.

A. The employment of unauthorized aliens by the Contractor/vendor is considered a violation of Section 274A(e) of the Immigration and Nationality Act. If the Contractor knowingly employs unauthorized aliens, such violation shall be cause for unilateral cancellation of this Contract. Contractor shall be responsible for including this provision in all subcontracts with private organizations issued as a result of this Contract.

B. Contractor is required to use the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all employees used by the Contractor under this Contract, pursuant to State of Florida Executive Order No.: 11-116. Also, the Contractor shall include in related subcontracts, if authorized under this Contract, a requirement that subcontractors performing work or providing services pursuant to this Contract utilize the E-Verify system to verify employment eligibility of all employees used by the subcontractor for the performance of the Work.

36. EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS. This Contract, and any Change Orders or Amendments thereto, may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which together shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. In the event that any signature is delivered by facsimile transmission or by e-mail delivery of a ".pdf" format data file, such signature shall create a valid and binding obligation of the party

executing (or on whose behalf such signature is executed) with the same force and effect as if such facsimile or ".pdf" signature page were an original thereof.

37. FORCE MAJEURE. Contractor shall not be responsible for delay resulting from its failure to perform if neither the fault nor the negligence of the Contractor or its employees, subcontractors or agents contributed to the delay and the delay is due directly to acts of God, wars, acts of public enemies, strikes, fires, floods, hurricanes, or other similar cause wholly beyond the Contractor's control, or for any of the foregoing that affect subcontractors or suppliers if no alternate source of supply is available to the Contractor. In case of any delay the Contractor believes is excusable, the Contractor shall notify the Department in writing of the delay or potential delay and describe the cause of the delay either 1) within five (5) days after the cause that creates or will create the delay first arose, if the Contractor could reasonably foresee that a delay could occur as a result, or 2) if delay is not reasonably foreseeable, within ten (10) days after the date the Contractor first had reason to believe that a delay could result. THE FOREGOING SHALL CONSTITUTE THE CONTRACTOR'S SOLE REMEDY OR EXCUSE WITH RESPECT TO DELAY. Providing notice in strict accordance with this paragraph is a condition precedent to such remedy. No claim for damages, other than for an extension of time, shall be asserted by the Contractor against the Department. Contractor shall not be entitled to an increase in the price or payment of any kind from the Department for direct, indirect, consequential, impact or other costs, expenses or damages, including but not limited to costs of acceleration or inefficiency, arising because of delay, disruption, interference, or hindrance from any cause whatsoever. If performance is suspended or delayed, in whole or in part, due to any of the causes described in this paragraph, after the causes have ceased to exist the Contractor shall perform at no increased cost, unless the Department determines, in its sole discretion, that the delay will significantly impair the value of the Contract to the State or to the Department, in which case the Department may 1) accept allocated performance or deliveries from the Contractor, provided that the Contractor grants preferential treatment to the Department with respect to products subjected to allocation, or 2) purchase from other sources (without recourse to and by the Contractor for the related costs and expenses) to replace all or part of the products that are the subject of the delay, which purchases may be deducted from the Contract quantity, or 3) terminate the Contract in whole or in part.

38. FORUM SELECTION, SEVERABILITY, AND CHOICE OF LAW. This Contract has been delivered in the State of Florida and shall be construed in accordance with substantive and procedural laws of Florida. Wherever possible, each provision of this Contract shall be interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision of this Contract shall be prohibited or invalid under applicable law, such provision shall be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or invalidity, without invalidating the remainder of such provision or the remaining provisions of this Contract. Any action in connection with this Contract shall be brought in a court of competent jurisdiction located in Leon County, Florida.

39. GOVERNMENTAL RESTRICTIONS. If the Contractor believes that any governmental restrictions require alteration of the material, quality, workmanship or performance of the products offered under this Contract, the Contractor shall immediately notify the Department so in writing, identifying the specific restriction and alteration. Department reserves the right and the complete discretion to accept any such alteration or to cancel the Contract at no further expense to the Department. Contractor's failure to timely notify the Department of its asserted belief shall constitute a waiver of such claim.

40. HEADINGS. The headings contained herein are for convenience only, do not constitute a part of this Contract and shall not be deemed to limit or affect any of the provisions hereof.

41. INTEGRATION. This Contract contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties, which terms and conditions shall govern all transactions between the Department and the Contractor. Any alterations, variations, changes, modifications or waivers of provisions of this Contract shall only be valid when they have been reduced to writing, duly signed by each of the parties hereto, and attached to the original of this Contract, unless otherwise provided herein. No oral agreements or representations shall be valid or binding upon the Department or the Contractor. No alteration or modification of the Contract terms, including substitution of product, shall be valid or

binding against the Department. Contractor may not unilaterally modify the terms of this Contract by affixing additional terms to product upon delivery (e.g., attachment or inclusion of standard preprinted forms, product literature, "shrink wrap" terms accompanying or affixed to a product, whether written or electronic) or by incorporating such terms onto the Contractor's order or fiscal forms or other documents forwarded by the Contractor for payment. Department's acceptance of product or processing of documentation on forms furnished by the Contractor for approval or payment shall not constitute acceptance of the proposed modification to terms and conditions.

42. INTERPRETATION OF CONTRACT.

A. Where appropriate: the singular includes the plural and vice versa; references to statutes or regulations include all statutory or regulatory provisions consolidating, amending or replacing the statute or regulation referred to; unless otherwise indicated references to Rules are to the adopted rules in the Florida Administrative Code; the words "including," "includes" and "include" shall be deemed to be followed by the words "without limitation"; unless otherwise indicated references to sections, appendices or schedules are to this Contract; words such as "herein," "hereof" and "hereunder" shall refer to the entire document in which they are contained and not to any particular provision or section; words not otherwise defined which have well-known technical or construction industry meanings, are used in accordance with such recognized meanings; references to Persons include their respective permitted successors and assigns and, in the case of Governmental Persons, Persons succeeding to their respective functions and capacities; and words of any gender used herein shall include each other gender where appropriate.

B. Contractor acknowledges and agrees that it has independently reviewed this Contract with legal counsel, and that it has the requisite experience and sophistication to understand, interpret and agree to the particular language of the terms. Accordingly, if an ambiguity in (or dispute regarding the interpretation of) this Contract shall arise, the Contract shall not be interpreted or construed against the Department, and, instead, other rules of interpretation and construction shall be used. Contractor further acknowledges and agrees that it had the opportunity and obligation, prior to submission of its Response, to review the terms and conditions of this Contract and to bring to the attention of the Department any conflicts or ambiguities contained therein.

43. MODIFICATIONS REQUIRED BY LAW. Department reserves the right to revise this Contract to include additional language required by Federal agency(ies) or other sources awarding funding to the Department in support of this Contract, if applicable, and to include changes required by Florida Administrative Code rule changes.

44. MYFLORIDAMARKETPLACE TRANSACTION FEE.

A. The State of Florida through the Department of Management Services (DMS), has instituted MyFloridaMarketPlace (MFMP), a statewide e-procurement system. Pursuant to section 287.057(22)(c), F.S., all payments shall be assessed a Transaction Fee which the Contractor shall pay the State unless exempt pursuant to Rule 60A-1.031, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.).

B. For payments within the State accounting system (FLAIR or its successor), the Transaction Fee shall, when possible, be automatically deducted from payments to the Contractor. If automatic deduction is not possible, the Contractor shall pay the Transaction Fee pursuant to Rule 60A-1.031, F.A.C. By submission of these reports and corresponding payments, the Contractor certifies their correctness. All such reports and payments shall be subject to audit by the State or its designee.

C. Contractor shall receive a credit for any Transaction Fee paid by the Contractor for the purchase of any item(s) if such item(s) is/are returned to the Contractor through no fault, act, or omission of the Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Transaction Fee is non-refundable when an item is rejected, returned, or declined, due to the Contractor's failure to perform or comply with specifications or requirements of this Contract.

D. Failure to comply with these requirements shall constitute grounds for declaring the Contractor in default and recovering re-procurement costs from the Contractor in addition to all outstanding fees. CONTRACTORS THAT

ARE DELINQUENT IN PAYING TRANSACTION FEES MAY BE EXCLUDED FROM CONDUCTING FUTURE BUSINESS WITH THE STATE.

45. NONDISCRIMINATION.

A. Contractor certifies that no person, on the grounds of race, creed, color, religion, national origin, age, gender, or disability, shall be excluded from participation in; be denied the proceeds or benefits of; or be otherwise subjected to discrimination in performance of this Contract.

B. Contractor certifies that neither it nor any affiliate is or has been placed on the discriminatory vendor list. An entity or affiliate who has been placed on the discriminatory vendor list may not submit a bid on a contract to provide goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real property to a public entity, may not award or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor or consultant under contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity. The Florida Department of Management Services ("DMS") is responsible for maintaining the discriminatory vendor list and posts the list on its website. Questions regarding the discriminatory vendor list may be directed to the Florida Department of Management Services, Office of Supplier Diversity at (850) 487-0915.

C. Contractor shall comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

46. NON-SOLICITATION. Contractor covenants and warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Contractor to solicit or secure this Contract and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any person, company, corporation, individual, or firm, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Contractor any fee, commission, percentage, gift or other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Contract.

47. NON-WAIVER OF RIGHTS. No delay or failure to exercise any right, power or remedy accruing to either party upon breach or default by the other party under this Contract, shall impair any such right, power or remedy of either party; nor shall such delay or failure be construed as a waiver of any such breach or default, or any similar breach or default thereafter.

48. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE. In the event of a conflict in terms between any of the components of this Contract, the order of precedence for resolving such conflict shall be as follows (1 being the highest precedence):

- 1. Body of this Contract;
- 2. Scope;
- 3. All other attachments to this Contract;
- 4. Documents, agreements and exhibits incorporated herein by reference;
- 5. Solicitation, including all attachments, addenda, and questions and answers; and
- 6. Contractor's Response to the Solicitation.

49. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. All plans, specifications, maps, computer files, databases and/or reports prepared or obtained under this Contract, as well as data collected together with summaries and charts derived therefrom, shall be considered works made for hire and shall be and become the property of the Department upon completion or termination of this Contract, without restriction or limitation on their use, and shall be made available upon request to the Department at any time during the performance of such services and/or upon completion or termination of this Contract. Upon delivery to the Department of said document(s), the Department shall become the custodian thereof in accordance with Chapter 119, F.S. Contractor shall not copyright any material and products or patent any invention developed under this Contract.

50. P.R.I.D.E. When possible, the Contractor agrees that any articles which are the subject of, or required to carry out, this Contract shall be purchased from P.R.I.D.E. as specified in Chapter 946, F.S., if available, in the same manner

and under the same procedures set forth in section 946.515(2) and (4), F.S.; and for purposes of this Contract the person, firm or other business entity carrying out the provisions of this Contract shall be deemed to be substituted for this agency insofar as dealings with P.R.I.D.E. are concerned.

The "Corporation identified" is PRISON REHABILITATIVE INDUSTRIES AND DIVERSIFIED ENTERPRISES, INC. (P.R.I.D.E.) which may be contacted at:

P.R.I.D.E. 12425 28th Street, North St. Petersburg, Florida 33716-1826 Toll Free: 1-800-643-8459 Website: <u>http://www.pride-enterprises.org/</u>

51. PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES. A person or affiliate (as defined) who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount for Category Two (as defined in section 287.017, F.S.), for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list, pursuant to section 287.133, F.S. Contractor certifies that neither it nor any affiliate has been placed on such convicted vendor list, and shall notify the Department within five (5) days of its, or any of its affiliate's, placement thereon.

52. PUBLIC RECORDS. Public Records Requirements (**Attachment G**), as attached to this Contract, are hereby incorporated into the Contract.

53. RECORD KEEPING AND AUDIT.

A. Contractor shall maintain books, records and documents directly pertinent to performance under this Contract in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles (**US GAAP**) consistently applied. Department, the State, or their authorized representatives shall have access to such records for audit purposes during the term of this Contract and for five (5) years following Contract completion or termination. In the event any work is subcontracted, the Contractor shall similarly require each subcontractor to maintain and allow access to such records for audit purposes.

B. The Contractor understands its duty, pursuant to section 20.055(5), F.S., to cooperate with the Department's Inspector General in any investigation, audit, inspection, review, or hearing. The Contractor will comply with this duty and ensure that its subcontracts issued under this Contract, if any, impose this requirement, in writing, on its subcontractors.

54. REMEDIES. All rights and remedies provided in this Contract are cumulative and not exclusive of any other rights or remedies that may be available to the Department, whether provided by law, equity, statute, in any other agreement between the parties or otherwise. Department shall be entitled to injunctive and other equitable relief, including, but not limited to, specific performance, to prevent a breach, continued breach or threatened breach of this Contract. No remedy or election <u>hereunder</u> shall be deemed exclusive. A failure to exercise or a delay in exercising, on the part of the Department, any right, remedy, power or privilege hereunder shall not operate as a waiver thereof; nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right, remedy, power or privilege hereunder preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, remedy, power or privilege.

55. RESPECT OF FLORIDA. When possible, the Contractor agrees that any articles that are the subject of, or required to carry out, this Contract shall be purchased from a nonprofit agency for the blind or for the severely handicapped that is qualified pursuant to Chapter 413, F.S., in the same manner and under the same procedures set forth in section 413.036(1) and (2), F.S.; and for purposes of this Contract the person, firm, or other business entity carrying out the

provisions of this Contract shall be deemed to be substituted for the state agency insofar as dealing with such qualified nonprofit agency is concerned.

The "nonprofit agency" identified is RESPECT of Florida which may be contacted at:

RESPECT of Florida. 2475 Apalachee Parkway, Suite 205 Tallahassee, Florida 32301-4946 (850) 487-1471 Website: <u>www.respectofflorida.org</u>

56. SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES.

A. Contractor certifies that it and its subcontractors are not on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List. Pursuant to section 287.135, F.S., the Department may immediately terminate this Contract at its sole option if the Contractor or its subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the Contractor, or its subcontractors are placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in the boycott of Israel during the term of the Contract.

B. If this Contract is for more than one million dollars, the Contractor certifies that it and its subcontractors are also not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan, Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or engaged with business operations in Cuba or Syria as identified in section 287.135, F.S. Pursuant to section 287.135, F.S., the Department may immediately terminate this Contract at its sole option if the Contractor, its affiliates, or its subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the Contractor, its affiliates, or its subcontractors are placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or engaged with business operations in Cuba or Syria during the term of the Contract.

C. As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), F.S., if federal law ceases to authorize these contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative.

57. TAX EXEMPTION. Contractor recognizes that the Department is an agency of the State of Florida, which by virtue of its sovereignty is not required to pay any taxes on the services or goods purchased under the terms of this Contract. Department does not pay Federal excise or sales taxes on direct purchases of tangible personal property. Department will not pay for any personal property taxes levied on the Contractor or for any taxes levied on employees' wages.

58. General Contract Conditions (PUR 1000). The Form PUR 1000, General Contract Conditions, is incorporated by reference and can be accessed at MyFlorida.com, Department of Management Services (DMS). In the event of any conflict between the Form PUR 1000 and any Special Conditions, the Special Conditions shall take precedence unless the conflicting term in the PUR Form 1000 is required by any section of the Florida Statutes, in which case the statutory requirements shall take precedence.

59. WARRANTY OF ABILITY TO PERFORM. Contractor warrants that, to the best of its knowledge, there is no pending or threatened action, proceeding, or investigation, or any other legal or financial condition, that would in any way prohibit, restrain, or diminish the Contractor's ability to satisfy its Contract obligations. Contractor warrants that neither it nor any affiliate is currently on the convicted vendor list maintained pursuant to section 287.133 of the Florida Statutes, or on any similar list maintained by any other state or the federal government. Contractor shall immediately notify the Department in writing if its ability to perform is compromised in any manner during the term of this Contract and any renewals.

60. WARRANTY OF AUTHORITY. Each person signing this Contract warrants that he or she is duly authorized to do so and to bind the respective party to this Contract.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Contract to be duly executed, the day and year last written below.

Contractor Name	Florida Department of Environmental Protection							
By: Title:	By: Secretary or Designee							
Date:	Date:							
FEID No. «FEID»								
List of attachments/exhibits included as part of this	Contract:							
Specify Type /								

Letter Description

Attachment A Scope of Work (____ pages)

Attachment B Rate Schedule (_____ pages)

Attachment C Subcontractor Utilization Report Form (2 pages)

Attachment D Public Records Requirements (1 page)

– Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank –

ATTACHMENT A - SCOPE OF WORK

– Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank –

ATTACHMENT B - RATE SCHEDULE

– Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank –

ATTACHMENT C

SUBCONTRACTOR UTILIZATION REPORT FORM (IF APPLICABLE)

DIRECTIONS:

Contractors working for the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) **must complete and submit this attachment with each invoice submitted for payment**. Questions regarding use of this form should be directed to the Procurement Section (MS93), Florida Department of Environmental Protection, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000, Phone (850) 245-2361.

		INDICATE THE ONE OFFICE OF SUPPLIER DIVERSITY CATEGORY THAT BEST																						
		DESCRIBES EACH ORGANIZATION LISTED																						
DEP Contract No.:		В	USIN	ESS (CLAS	SIFIC	ΑΤΙΟ	N		CER	TIFI	ED I	ИВЕ		N	DN-O	CERT	IFIE	D M	IBE	N	ION-F	ROF	ΙТ
Invoice Number:																						OR	۱G.	
Task Assignment No. (if applical		NON-MINORITY (A	SMALL BUSI	SMALL BUSI	GOVERNME	NON-PROFI	P.R.I.D.E. (G)	VETERAN BL	AFRICAN AN	HISPANIC (I)	ASIAN/HAWAIIAN (J)	NATIVE AMERICAN (K)	AMERICAN	VETERAN BL	AFRICAN AN	HISPANIC (O)	ASIAN/HAWAIIAN (P)	NATIVE AMERICAN (Q)	AMERICAN WOMAN (R)	VETERAN BL	BOARD IS 5:	51% OR MO	51% OR MO	OTHER NON-PROFIT (V)
LIST NAMES AND ADDRESSES		RITY (A)	SMALL BUSINESS (STATE) (B)	SMALL BUSINESS (FEDERAL) (C)	GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY (D)	NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATION (F)	5)	VETERAN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (L)	AFRICAN AMERICAN (H)		/AIIAN (J)	ERICAN (K)	AMERICAN WOMAN (M)	VETERAN BUISNESS ENTERPRISE (W)	AFRICAN AMERICAN (N)	0)	/AIIAN (P)	ERICAN (Q)	WOMAN (R)	VETERAN BUISNESS ENTERPRISE (Y)	BOARD IS 51% OR MORE MINORITY (S)	51% OR MORE MINORITY OFFICERS (T)	51% OR MORE MINORITY COMMUNITY SERVED	v-PROFIT (V)
OF SUBCONTRACTORS UTILIZED THIS INVOICE PERIOD	LIST AMOUNT PAID TO EACH SUBCONTRACTOR THIS INVOICE PERIOD																						SERVED (U)	

SUBCONTRACTOR UTILIZATION REPORT FORM CERTIFICATION:

I certify that the information provided in the preceding page(s) is accurate as of the last day of the payment period identified on this form.

-	
(Signature)	(Date)
	(Business Name)
	(Street Address)
	(City, State, Zip Code)
	(Phone Number)

DEP 55-217 (08/00)

ATTACHMENT D – PUBLIC RECORDS REQUIREMENTS

1. Public Records Access Requirements.

- a. If the Contract exceeds \$35,000.00, and if the Contractor is acting on behalf of the Department in its performance of services under the Contract, the Contractor must allow public access to all documents, papers, letters, or other material, regardless of the physical form, characteristics, or means of transmission, made or received by the Contractor in conjunction with the Contract (Public Records), unless the Public Records are exempt from section 24(a) of Article I of the Florida Constitution or section 119.07(1), F.S.
- b. The Department may unilaterally terminate the Contract if the Contractor refuses to allow public access to Public Records as required by law.

2. Additional Public Records Duties of Section 119.0701, F.S., If Applicable.

If the Contractor is a "contractor" as defined in section 119.0701(1)(a), F.S., the Contractor shall:

- (1) Keep and maintain Public Records required by the Department to perform the service.
- (2) Upon request, provide the Department with a copy of requested Public Records or allow the Public Records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, F.S., or as otherwise provided by law.
- (3) A Contractor who fails to provide the Public Records to the Department within a reasonable time may be subject to penalties under section 119.10, F.S.
- (4) Ensure that Public Records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from Public Records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the Contract term and following completion of the Contract if the Contractor does not transfer the Public Records to the Department.
- (5) Upon completion of the Contract, transfer, at no cost, to the Department all Public Records in possession of the Contractor or keep and maintain Public Records required by the Department to perform the service. If the Contractor transfers all Public Records to the Department upon completion of the Contract, the Contractor shall destroy any duplicate Public Records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from Public Records disclosure requirements. If the Contractor keeps and maintains Public Records upon completion of the Contract, the Contract, the Contractor shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining Public Records. All Public Records stored electronically must be provided to the Department, upon request from the Department's custodian of Public Records, in a format specified by the Department as compatible with the information technology systems of the Department. These formatting requirements are satisfied by using the data formats as authorized in the Contract or Microsoft Word, Outlook, Adobe, or Excel, and any software formats the Contractor is authorized to access.

(6) IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, F.S., TO THE CONTRACTOR'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THE CONTRACT, CONTACT THE DEPARTMENT'S CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT:

(850) 245-2118
public.services@dep.state.fl.us
Department of Environmental Protection
ATTN: Office of Ombudsman and Public Services
Public Records Request
3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, MS 49
Tallahassee, Florida 32399

SECTION 16.00 - SOLICITATION PROPOSAL CHECKLIST

This "Checklist" is provided merely for the convenience of the Bidder and may not be relied upon in lieu of the instructions or requirements of this Solicitation.

To ensure that Bidder's Bid package can be accepted, please be sure the following items are fully completed and enclosed:

- A. ____ The Solicitation Acknowledgement Form must be completed and signed. If a Bidder fails to submit a completed Solicitation Acknowledgement Form with their Bid the Department reserves the right to contact the Bidder by telephone for submission of this document via email. This right shall be exercised when the Bid has met all other requirements of the Solicitation. Did you complete the following:
 - 1) Vendor Name;
 - 2) Vendor Mailing Address;
 - 3) City, State and Zip Code;
 - 4) Phone Number and Fax Number with Area Code;
 - 5) Email Address;
 - 6) F.E.I.D. Number;
 - 7) Type of Business Entity (Corporation, LLC, Partnership, etc.);
 - 8) Sign Form (by individual authorized to bind company);
 - 9) Type Name of Signatory and Title; and,
 - 10) Primary and Secondary Contact Information?

In the event that the Bidder submits a Bid as a joint venture, each member of the joint venture must complete and sign a separate Solicitation Acknowledgement Form.

- B. ____ Additional Documents this section of the bid shall contain the following:
 - Vendor Financial Attestation;
 - Vendor Responsibility Disclosure;
 - Vendor Conflicts of Interest Attestation;
 - Vendor Principal Place of Business Attestation Form;
 - Vendor Drug-Free Workplace Attestation; and
 - Vendor Scrutinized Companies Lists Attestation.
- C. ____ Client Reference Form
- D. ____ The Price Sheet Form must be completed and signed. If a Bidder fails to submit a completed Price Sheet Form with their submittal, the submittal will be rejected.
 - Did you complete the following?
 - 1) Prices;
 - 2) Sign Form;
 - 3) Bidder/Company Name; and
 - 4) Print/Type name of Signatory and Title.
 - One (1) Original Hard Copy of entire Bid
 - One (1) Electronic Copy of entire Bid on CD/DVD, or USB. Must indicate the Respondent's name, ITB number, and volume and title (if separated).

Note: If Bidder asserts that any portion of the Bid is exempt from disclosure under the Florida Public Records law, Bidder must submit a redacted version of the Bid along with the unredacted version. The redacted copy shall be clearly titled "Redacted Copy."